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Bambang Reguna Bukit

REPRESENTATIVE OF THE
SUPERVISORY BOARD MEMBERS
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI)

=\VWORD

OM THE
PRESENTATIVE
of the Supervisory
Boar

With gratitude to God’s grace, | am honoured to share this message as
Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI) closes an important chapter in its 2024
journey. As a songwriter and musician who believes that every melody is a
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gift and every lyric carries a purpose, | am grateful to stand alongside our
songwriters and publishers in a year filled with meaningful progress and
transformation.

~OREWORD

The year 2024 marked a renewed momentum for WAMI in strengthening
the foundations of governance, transparency, and service excellence. The
launch of ATLAS, the enhancement of organizational structures, and the
expansion of international cooperation reflect WAMI's commitment to
progress with integrity, clarity, and accountability.

NA MUSIK INDONESIA




| am encouraged to see more songwriters joining
WAMI, more repertoires being documented,
and increasing recognition of Indonesian music
beyond our borders. These achievements
represent notjustinstitutional success, but shared
victories for every songwriter and publisher who
entrusts WAM I to safeguard their rights.

As a songwriter and musician, | have learned that
great performances require more than talent,
they demand preparation, strong teamwork, and
trust from the audience. In the same spirit, WAMI
continues to evolve with stronger systems,
smarter management, and deeper collaboration
to meet the evolving landscape of the music
industry both in Indonesia and globally.

To my fellow songwriters, let me remind you: we
do not merely write songs, we write history. Every
composition you create is a legacy that deserves
recognition, protection, and fair compensation.
WAMI stands beside you to ensure that your
work is valued, your rights are respected, and
your music reaches its fullest potential.

Looking ahead, | believe WAMI will continue to
grow as a professional, transparent, and globally
relevant collective management organization.
With strong governance, broad partnerships,
and a culture of continuous innovation, we can
look forward to seeing Indonesian works shine
even brighter on the world stage.

Finally, | extend my sincere appreciation to the
Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors,
WAMI management team, and especially to our
members, the songwriters and publishers, for
your trust and collaboration. Let us continue to
create, to uplift one another, and to build a music
ecosystem that is fair, inclusive, sustainable, and
inspiring for generations to come.

Jakarta, October 2025

Bambang Reguna Bukit
Representative of the Supervisory Board Members
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI)




Adi Adrian

PRESIDENT DIRECTOR
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI)

With profound gratitude, | am pleased to present
the Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI) Annual
Report for 2024. This year marks not only a
period of recovery for the music industry, but also
an important milestone in WAMI's organizational
transformation.

Throughout 2024, WAMI navigated significant
shifts. The adjustments within the digital sector
in the previous year created structural impacts
on the current year's royalty distributions. Yet,
through the dedication of our teams, the trust
of our members, and our strong commitment to
good governance, WAMI successfully returned
to income growth and strengthened the
operational foundation of the organization.

One of the most notable milestones this year
was the launch of ATLAS, our integrated

_______(]) / waus

internal system that consolidates membership
data, repertoire documentation, and royalty
distribution into a single platform. ATLAS lays the

groundwork for greater transparency, accuracy,
and efficiency—reflecting our commitment to
data-driven management and enhanced service
delivery to our members.

Internally, 2024 was also a year of organizational
consolidation. WAMI undertook a targeted
restructuring and established several strategic
functions, including the Operations Department,
the HRGA & Procurement Department, and
the Legal Department. These enhancements
improve WAMI's capacity to manage increasing
data volume, strengthen member services,
and ensure legal certainty across all processes
of royalty collection and distribution. The legal
actions taken against non-compliant event



organizers also marked an important precedent for the protection of music
creators' and publishers' economic rights.

On the international stage, WAMI continued to expand its role through active
participation in CISAC activities and its involvement in the WIPO-supported
mentorship program. Our cooperation with more than 60 Collective Management
Organizations (CMQOs) across 57 countries reflects growing global confidence in
WAMI's governance and the increasing visibility of Indonesian repertoire worldwide.

The year 2024 also strengthened our engagement with the public. Through
educational programs, campus initiatives, media outreach, and our Annual
Members' Meeting, WAMI continued to foster open dialogue, improve copyright
literacy, and ensure that every member feels represented and supported.

These achievements are the result of strong synergy between the Board of
Supervisors, the Board of Management, and allmembers who entrust us with their
works and economic rights. For this, | extend my deepest appreciation.

Moving forward, WAMI remains committed to evolving into an organization that
is increasingly professional, transparent, and responsive to the dynamics of the
global music industry. With strong governance, broad collaboration, and continuous
innovation, we believe WAMI can deliver even greater value to music creators,
music publishers, and the entire Indonesian music ecosystem.

Finally,|lexpressmy sincere gratitude for the enduring support, trust,and cooperation
of all stakeholders. May the 2024 Annual Report serve as both a reflection of our
journey and a foundation for a stronger and more sustainable future.

Jakarta, October 2025

Adi Adrian
President Director
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI)

.
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With sincere appreciation, we present the Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI) 2024
Annual Report as part of our accountability to members and stakeholders. This
report outlines the institutional, operational, and financial achievements carried out
throughout 2024.

The year 2024 marked a period of strengthening WAMI's internal structure and
processes. Organizational restructuring, enhanced human resource capacity,
and adjustments to operational functions were undertaken to ensure that WAMI's
workflow becomes more standardized and more aligned with principles of
Organizational Governance.

The implementation of ATLAS was one of the key initiatives in modernizing our
systems. The integration of documentation, usage reporting, and distribution
processes into a single centralized platform has improved data quality and
increased overall process efficiency.

In the licensing domain, the rise in collection activities, particularly within the Live
Event category, reflectsimprovements in verification procedures, more measurable
target-setting, and stronger coordination among relevant units in carrying out
collection functions as the daily executor of LMKN for copyright.

Enhancements in internal control were also undertaken through policy
harmonization, improvements in reporting workflows, and alignment of work
procedures with organizational governance standards.

We extend our gratitude to all members, partners, and stakeholders for their
support throughout the year. We also express our appreciation to the entire WAMI
team for their contribution in carrying out organizational activities and ensuring the
continuity of services to our members.

Jakarta, October 2025

Suseno Adi Prasetyo
Managing Director
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia (WAMI)

ANNUAL REPORT 2024/08






LICENSING O/

Royalti Collections

204.58

Royalties Collection
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

. Overseas
88.49 Non-Digital

® oiital

— Total

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

The year 2024 represented a significant recovery phase for
WAMI's royalty collections. Total collections reached IDR
176.24 billion, driven primarily by digital income. However,
the strongest growth came from the non-digital sector,
which rose to IDR 26.25 bilion, and overseas royalties,
which reached IDR 19.21 billion.

Thereboundinthese two sectors demonstrated the growing
diversification of WAMI's income streams. The revival of
offline music activities, concerts, festivals, and public events,
combined with strengthened reciprocal relationships with
foreign CMQOs, contributed to a more balanced growth
pattern.

Over the past five years, WAMI's collection performance
has reflected the dynamics of market conditions, regulatory
shifts, and industry transformation. Amid that fluctuation,
2024 signaled a new direction: diversification as a core long-
term strategy for sustainable growth.
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Comparison of Royalty Collection 2024
2023 Composition
8\/2% Non-Digital
_ Overseas 14_90/0
14.4% 10.9%
—>

Digital

77.2%

2023 vs 2024 Collection Composition

The comparison of royalty collectionbetween 2023
and 2024 shows that WAMI's income structure
remains dominated by the digital sector, which
continues to serve as the primary contributor
over the past two years. Nevertheless, both
the non-digital and overseas sectors recorded
notable increases in value, indicating a positive
direction toward diversification, even though their
proportional shares have not shifted significantly.

The 2024 results reflect more than just numerical
growth—they mark an early step in strengthening

Digital Royalty Collections

2020 2021

2022 2023 2024

Digital Royalty Collections
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

revenue from non-digital and overseas sources.
WAMI will continue to enhance the contribution of
these sectors by improving operational capacity
and harmonizing collection processes in its role as
the daily executor of LMKN.

With these improvements, WAMI aims for its
revenue structure to evolve toward a healthier
and more sustainable composition in the coming
years.

Digitalroyalty collectionsin 2024 amounted to IDR
130.78 billion, marking arecovery after a notable
decline in 2023. The improvement aligned with
better global data-exchange mechanisms and
the enhanced quality of usage reports submitted
by Digital Service Providers (DSPs).

I] /WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA



Digital Collection 2024
DSP Contribution

TikTok Others

2% 2%

Spotify

8%

Disney+

15%

YouTube

53%

YouTube remained the dominant contributor (53%), followed
by Meta (17%), Disney+ (15%), and Spotify (8%), highlighting
the continuing dominance of video-based and social-media
platforms in music usage across Indonesia.

Throughout 2024, WAMI strengthened its monitoring
systems, metadata validation processes, and coordination
with global DSPs to ensure accuracy and timely processing
of usage data. Looking ahead, WAMI will intensify
licensing enforcement for DSPs operating without proper
authorization and expand coverage of music usage claims
within the Indonesian territory.

Non-Digital Royalty Collections

The performance of the non-digital sector over
the past five years shows a significant upward
shift. After recording relatively low figures in
2020 and reaching its lowest point in 2021-
2022, this sector was in a less-than-optimal
position. However, beginning in 2023, the non-
digital sector rebounded strongly, and in 2024 it
reached Rp26.25 billion, its highest level in five
years. This trend marks the return of the non-
digital segment as one of WAMI's key pillars of
royalty collection.

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Live Event
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

>

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Non-Dlgital Royalty Collections
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

This growth was primarily driven by a substantial
surge in the Live Event category in 2024. Live
Event royalties increased from Rp2.02 billion in
2023 to Rpl6.52 billion in 2024, more than an
eightfold rise.

Beyond the sharp increase in royalty value,
the number of licensed concerts also grew
significantly. WAMI collected royalties from 1158
concertsin 2024, nearly five times higher than the
previous year (233 concerts). This achievement

&
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resulted from the more ambitious 2024 target
of 1,000 concerts, which was not only met
but surpassed. The rise in licensed events
demonstrates the effectiveness of WAMI's
operational strategies, including improvements

26,25

. Karaoke
. Broadcast
Live Event
18,99
@ BGM

Total

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Non-Digital Royalty

Collections by Category
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

in identification and verification processes,
stronger coordination with regional agents,
and enhanced internal readiness following
organizational restructuring.

Non-digital royalty collections—covering Back-
ground Music (BGM), Broadcast, and Live
Events—is administered by the National Collec-
tive Management Organization (LMKN) under a
one-stop shop licensing mechanism, supported
by local CMOs as Daily Executors (Pelaksana Ha-
rian). Through 2024, WAMI collected Live Event
royalties on behalf of songwriters, with licens-
ing payments made directly by users to LMKN.
LMKN then distributes royalties to local CMOs,
scheduled each month, after completing identi-
fication and verification of usage reports.

In addition to WAMI, other local CMOs such as
KCI, RAI, and SELMI (representing neighbouring
rights) also collect royalties from users as Daily
Executors of LMKN. As of 2024, five copyright
local CMQOs and nine neighbouring rights local
CMOs were operating nationwide.

To ensure optimal collection practices, WAMI col-
laborates with regional agents. In cases where
users refuse to pay royalties, WAMI coordinates

with Civil Servant Investigators (Penyidik Pegawai Negeri Sipil/PPNS), local law firms, and the police de-
partment. This approach strengthens compliance among users while expanding WAMI's coverage in the

non-digital sector.

i h WAI“NA MUSITK INDONESIA




2023

(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

: BGM
Comparison 37.8%

of Category
Composition of Non-
Digital Collection

Live Event

10.6%

A shift in the non-digital revenue composition
became more evident in 2024. While in 2023 the
segment was dominated by BGM (37.8%) and
Karaoke (33.3%), in 2024 Live Events emerged as
the dominant contributor, accounting for 63%. The
shares of Karaoke, BGM, and Broadcast declined
proportionally, reflecting changes in music usage
patterns and improvements in royalty collection for
Live Events.

Karaoke

33.3%

Broadcast

2024

(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

el Karaoke

15% 18%

Broadcast

4%

Live Event

63%

Non-digital performance in 2024 was also
supported by stronger internal capacity. Additional
personnelin licensing, verification, documentation,
and field monitoring—outlined in the Human
Resources Report—enabled more intensive
collection efforts, higher verification accuracy, and
broader oversight of music usage across strategic
regions. These enhancements directly contributed
to the increase in non-digital revenue, including the
significant surge in Live Events.

Nevertheless, several non-digital categories continue to face challenges:

: constrained by delayed payments, installment requests, and suboptimal performance

:no tariff agreement has been reached with cinema operators, requiring coordinated

Broadcast

from Pay TV and regional TV stations.
Cinema

legal measures by LMKN and local CMOs.
Karaoke

:many karaoke venues across regions remain uncollected, largely due to limited user

awareness and low understanding of copyright obligations. Despite this, Karaoke

continues to be one of the major contributors in the non-digital segment.

Overall, the 2024 data confirms a shifting landscape in the
non-digital sector: from BGM and Karaoke dominance
toward Live Events as the primary driver. With strengthened
internal capacity, improved coordination among local CMOs
and LMKN, and adaptive strategies, the non-digital sector is
expected to continue contributing significantly to national
royalty collection in the years ahead.
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Overseas Royalty Collections

The achievements of 2024 indicate that
Indonesian musical works are gaining stronger
recognition on the international stage. Overseas
royalty collections in 2024 recorded significant
increase, reaching IDR 19.21 billion, up from IDR
1113 billion in 2023, making it one of the highest
achievements in the past five years. It reflects the
result of strengthened collaboration between
WAMI and sister societies in ensuring that the
rights of Indonesian rights holders are protected
and monetized across various territories
worldwide.

As the only Indonesian CMO member of CISAC
(International Confederation of Societies of
Authors and Composers), WAMI has direct
access to an extensive global network of foreign
CMQOs, enabling comprehensive reciprocal
and unilateral representation agreements. This
structure enhances international protection
for Indonesian works and accelerates royalty
collection from abroad.

MACP
CASH
ASCAP
PRS
COMPASS
MCT
MUST
BUMA
mMcSscC
JASRAC

OTHER CMOs

Overseas Royalty Collections - 2024

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Overseas Royalty Collections
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

Two main factors drove the 2024 increase:
Strengthened cooperation with sister
societies and improvements in international
data-exchange mechanisms.

Higher claims on performances and

Indonesian

broadcasts  of repertoire

overseas, reflecting rising global appreciation
for Indonesian music.

(Number in Billions of Rupiah)




The largest overseas collection contributor in
2024 was MACP (Malaysia) with IDR 7.09 billion,
followed by CASH (Hong Kong) at IDR 1.27 billion,
ASCAP (United States) at IDR 1.21 billion, PRS for
Music (United Kingdom) at IDR 113 billion, and
COMPASS (Singapore) at IDR 1.05 billion.

The strong performance from Malaysia
corresponds with long-standing cultural and
linguistic affinity, as well as research highlighting
the broad popularity of Indonesian pop music in
Malaysia (Muhammad & Universitas Padjadjaran,
2019).

Beyond MACP, the growing partnerships with
major societies such as PRS, CASH, ASCAP,
and COMPASS reflect long-term trust and
operational alignment. These relationships
continue to strengthen WAMI's position in the
international ecosystem.

Nevertheless, contributions from  several
societies remain relatively modest, indicating
room to strengthen cooperation in territories
with significant usage of Indonesian repertoire,
but royalty returns have not yet reached optimal
levels.

As a strategic response, WAMI is committed to
increasing overseasrevenue more aggressivelyin
the coming years, through intensified monitoring
of Indonesian repertoire usage in key territories
and by strengthening bilateral cooperation with
foreign CMOs in territories with high usage of
Indonesian music.

WAM/I'sactive participationininternational forums,
including CISAC events, has further expanded
international collaboration and reinforced WAMI's
role as the official representative of Indonesian
performing rights abroad.

Looking ahead, WAMI seeks to continue
enhancing overseas royalty management
through metadata improvements, repertoire
digitalization, and integration with CIS-Net and
GDSDX. With modern infrastructure and an
expanding international network, overseas
royalties are expected to remain a strong
and sustainable income pillar for Indonesian

songwriters and music publishers.
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MEMBERSHIP

Additional Number
of Composer

Carried Forward
. From Previous
Year

Non-activated
or Resigned
Members

5,671

4,759

—  Total

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Number of
WAMI's Composer Members

. Additional Number
of Publisher

Carried Forward
From Previous

Year
—  Total
118
13
101
88
63
51 63 88 101 113
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Number of

WAMI's Publisher Member

Membership growth across both songwriters
and publishers continued its upward trajectory
over the past five years. By the end of 2024,
WAMI recorded 5,671 songwriter members,
an increase of 19% from 4,759 in 2023. Of this
total, 913 were new members who joined
throughout 2024. In the same period, WAMI also
processed membership termination request
from one composer. The request was processed
in accordance with the Bylaws and did not affect
WAMI's overall operational activities.

The steady growth reflects the increasing trust
placed in WAMI by songwriters who rely on the
organizationtomanage and protect theireconomic
rights with transparency and professionalism.

I7/WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA



Publisher membership also increased from
13 in 2023 to 118 publishers in 2024,
with five new publishers joining during
the year. This positive development was
supported by strengthened communication
efforts and improved accessibility through
the combined initiatives of the Corporate
Communication Department and the
Membership Department, particularly in
expanding information outreach, refining online
registration processes, and improving service
quality through digital activation systems.

With a strengthened membership base and
a more comprehensive database, WAMI is
well positioned to enhance the effectiveness
of royalty collection and distribution,
consistent with its commitment to uphold
strong governance, transparency, and public
trust in Indonesia’s collective management
ecosystem.
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As a CMO mandated to protect and administer the
economic rights of songwriters and music publishers, WAMI
carries out its operational functions through these two pillars:
Documentation and Distribution.

These pillars ensure that repertoire data is recorded with the
highest possible accuracy and that royalty disbursements
are delivered fairly, transparently, and in a traceable manner
to the rightful owners.

The year 2024 marked an important phase in strengthening
WAMI's operational infrastructure. The growing volume
of repertoire, increasingly complex patterns of music
usage, and rising expectations for transparency required
operational processes that are more robust, integrated, and
data-driven.

The launch of ATLAS during the WAMI's 2024 Annual
General Meeting (AGM) signaled a major milestone in
the digital transformation of WAMI's documentation and
royalty distribution systems. ATLAS integrates repertoire
documentation, usage reporting, and distribution workflows
into a single, unified platform, enabling faster, more

¢ transparent, and more efficient tracking across the entire
. . lifecycle of copyright management.
[ ]
-
2 This advancement is further supported by cross-

departmental collaboration, resulting in stronger operational
governance, enhanced verification procedures, and more
systematic monitoring mechanisms. Through these internal
improvements, WAMI continues to raise the standards of
royalty management and ensure that rights holders receive
compensation aligned with the actual use of their works.

OPERATIONS

ANNUAL REPORT




STRENGTHENING DATA DIGITALIZATION AND
ATLAS SYSTEM INTEGRATION

As part of WAMI’s efforts to enhance the quality
of membership services, 2024 marked the
beginning of a more systematic acceleration of
member data digitalization. This initiative aims
to ensure that all information related to works,
membership, and royalty distribution reports
is recorded with greater accuracy, verified
thoroughly, and synchronized within a unified
database.

Through collaboration between WAMI's internal
teams, BMAT (the ATLAS developer), and
relevant technical units, data integration and
metadata verification processes were carried out
on an ongoing basis. The optimization of ATLAS
as the primary data system enables registration

processes, member information updates, and
other administrative services to operate more
efficiently, be better documented, and remain
transparent.

As part of WAMIs long-term roadmap,
preparations have also begun for the
development of ATLAS 2.0, which is planned
in 2026. This
upgrade will introduce significant improvements
identification capabilities, broader

for implementation starting

in  work
administrative automation, and an enhanced
dashboard and interface for the member portal.
These advancements are expected to further
strengthen WAMI's operational foundation in the

years ahead.
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DOCUMENTATION

Additional Number
of (Song) Works

Carried Forward
. From Previous

Year
—  Total
N O
1@0
A 251.887
A 8% 231170

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Number of
Registered (Song) Works

Mm |":"| Tl .

The steady growth of WAMIs membership was
accompanied by a consistent increase in documented
works. By the end of 2024, the total number of songs
registered in WAMI's system reached 251,887 works, a
9% increase from 231,170 in 2023. Of this total, 20,717 were
newly registered works during 2024.

This trend reflects the growing awareness among
songwriters and music publishers regarding the importance
of formal documentation as a foundation for protecting their
economic rights. The expanding catalogue also highlights
the effectiveness of WAMI's education and communication
strategies, led by the Corporate Communication Department
and Membership Departments, in encouraging members to
document their works comprehensively.

The strengthened repertoire database positions WAMI to

enhance the accuracy and sustainability of its copyright
management functions.

=
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DISTRIBUTION

In 2024, WAMI distributed a total of IDR 126.33 billion in
royalties, representing a 27% decrease compared with
the IDR 17340 billion distributed in 2023. This decline was
structural in nature, primarily reflects the impact of the 2023
royalty collection cycle, which experienced a significant
slowdown in the digital sector.

As reported in last year’s Annual Report, royalty collections
in 2023 declined by 35% compared to 2022 due to global
changes in claim verification systems, which extended the
processing timeline for digital claims. Since distributions
in any given year are based largely on collections from the

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 previous year, the impact of the 2023 slowdown materialized
in the 2024 distribution figures. Thus, the 2024 distribution
Total Paid Distribution numbers do not indicate a decline in WAMI's operational
(Number in Billions of Rupiah) .
performance but rather reflect the natural cycle of prior-year
collections.

Despite these adjustments, 2024 became a critical milestone in strengthening WAMI's
distribution governance through the launch of ATLAS. Designed as an integrated internal
system, ATLAS connects repertoire documentation, usage reporting, and royalty
distribution into a fully traceable digital workflow, from
song registration to final distribution reporting. This
system enhances accuracy, transparency, and
accountability across all distribution processes,
and reinforces WAMI's capability to meet
modern governance standards at the global level.

The total distribution of IDR 126.33 billion in 2024 covered all
categories, digital, non-digital, and overseas. Details of overseas
distribution are provided in the following subsection.

DONESIA E;




Overseas Royalty Distribution

Overseas Distribution
(Number in Billions of Rupiah)

BMI
@ ~scap
MACP

® -rrs

KOMCA

‘ Others

—  Total

2020

Following a record high of IDR 36.28
billion in 2023, overseas distribution
in 2024 reached IDR 22.39 billion,
primarily reflecting the slowdown in
2023 collections.

Nonetheless, 2024 remained a
significant year for strengthening
WAMI's international partnerships.
The largest overseas distributions

36.28

2021 2022 2023 2024

were made to BMI (USA), ASCAP (USA), MACP (Malaysia),
PRS for Music (UK), and KOMCA (Korea). These figures
illustrate the robust use of international repertoire within
Indonesia across digital platforms and non-digital sectors.

The “Others” category, which represents numerous other
sister societies, also continued to show positive contributions,
underscoring the diversity of international repertoire used in
the Indonesian territory.
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Distribution Schedule

From 2017 to 2024, WAMI
fixed six-cycle distribution schedule each
year, consisting of one Non-digital (General)
distribution, two Digital distributions, and three

maintained a

Live Event distributions.

Beginning in 2025, the distribution schedule will
be streamlined into three integrated cycles per
year conducted in March, July, and November.
All categories (Digital, Non-digital, and Live
Events) will be consolidated into a single cycle
per period.

This adjustment was made following an
operational  efficiency
feedback, with the following objectives:

- to simplify and enhance operational efficiency;,

review and member

- to ensure thorough verification through ATLAS
before each distribution, and

- to increase effectiveness and deliver more
impactful distribution results to members by
distributing larger consolidated amounts per
cycle.

25/WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA



COMPARISON OF PREVIOUS AND NEW DISTRIBUTION SCHEDULES

Previous Distribution Schedule (up to 2024)

Non-digital/General
(Background Music/BGM, I. January - December (current year)
Karaoke, Broadcast, Cinema)

I. January - June (current year)

Digital
II. July - December (current year)
I. March - June (current year)
Live Events 1. July - October (current year)

ll. November (current year) - February (the next year)

June (the next year)

October (current year)
April (the next year)

July (current year)
November (current year)

March (the next year)

New Distribution Schedule Starting 2025

I. January - April (current year)
All Categories
1. May - August (current year)

lll. September - December (current year)

Each royalty distribution conducted by WAMI is based on
music usage reports submitted by users. However, WAMI
continues to face challenges regarding incomplete usage
reports, particularly in Non-digital (General) categories such
as BGM, Karaoke, and Broadcast.

To safeguard the rights of all members, WAMIimplements a
referential approach, combining available usage data with
field monitoring results and user characteristics within each
category. While this method is not yet perfect, it supports the
principles of fairness and equitable benefit allocation across
the membership base.

July (current year)
November (current year)

March (the next year)

As part of this commitment, WAMI also applies an annual
minimum royalty distribution granted to all members
during the first distribution cycle each year, ensuring that
every member receives proportional benefits from the
collective management system.
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As the only CISAC member CMO in Indonesia,
WAMI continues to play an active role in
strengthening cross-border collaboration and
expanding its network of partnerships with CMOs
across the Asia-Pacific region and globally.

Throughout 2024, WAMI actively participated

in various international meetings and activities
organized by CISAC, including the CISAC
General Assembly (GA) and the CISAC Asia-
Pacific Committee (APC) Meeting. In 2024, the
first CISAC APC Meeting and CISAC GA were
held in Seoul, Korea, hosted by KOMCA (Korea
Music Copyright Association).

WAMI at the CISAC Asia-Pacific Committee Meeting, 27—28 May 2024, Seoul, Korea
Photo credit: CISAC




At the CISAC APC Meeting, key strategic topics
were discussed, including strengthening regional
data-exchange mechanisms, resolving cross-
border claims, and developing joint initiatives for
metadata management at a global level. During
the CISAC General Assembly 2024, WAMI
attended as the representative of Indonesian
rights owners and rightsholders. The meeting
was attended by Yu In-chon (Minister of Culture,
Sports and Tourism of the Republic of Korea),
Bjorn Ulvaeus (CISAC President) and Marcelo
Castello Branco (CISAC Board Chairman).

CISAC General Assembly, 30 May 2024, Seoul
Photo credit: CISAC

In addition to these events, WAMI also
the CISAC Training on
Governance Declarations on 29 May 2024
in Seoul. The training focused on governance
principles and CISAC international standards that

allmember societies are required to comply with.

participated in

Sylvain Piat, CISAC Director of Business
CISAC Training on Governance Declaration 29 May 2024, Seoul
Photo Credit: CISAC

2024 CISAC

Hscomply

SO, DR LA

WAMI's participation is closely aligned with its
ongoing efforts to enhance internal governance
and organizational structures, and to ensure that
its practices are aligned with CISAC’s global
standards.
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MATIONAL EVENT
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WAMI at the National Event on WIPO Mentorship Program for CMOs, Pakistan, 2627 June 2024

The year 2024 also marked WAMIs active
involvement in the World Intellectual Property
Organization (WIPO) Mentorship Program
supported by CISAC. Under this program,
CISAC appointed WAMI as the mentor CMO
for COMP (Pakistan), a recognition of WAMI's
credibility and reliability as a trusted collective
management organization in the Asia-Pacific

region. Since the signing of the agreement,
COMP has registered more than 41,000 works
to be integrated into WAMI's system, which
continues to grow through global data exchange
mechanisms. This program further strengthens
WAM I's role as a regional collaboration hub and a
model for transparent governance in South Asia.

WAMI at the CISAC Asia-Pacific Committee Meeting, 4—5 December 2024, Kuala Lumpur

Photo credit: CISAC
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Towards the end of 2024, WAMI once again
attended the second CISAC Asia-Pacific
Committee Meeting of the year, held in Kuala
Lumpur, Malaysia in December 2024, hosted by
MACP (Music Authors Copyright Protection
Berhad). This meeting served as a follow-up
forum to reinforce regional collaboration and to
review progress on strategic agendas previously
discussed in Seoul.

Through active participation in these international
forums and the development of strategic
cooperation with foreign CMOs, WAMI continues
to strengthen its position as a credible and
proactive regional partner in global copyright
governance. WAMI's involvement at this level
symbolizes Indonesia’s presence on the global
stage and reflects its commitment to advancing
the rights and interests of Indonesian music
creators worldwide.

By the end of 2024, WAMI had concluded
representation agreements with 63 foreign
CMOs from 57 countries across Asia, Europe,
the Americas, Africa, and Australia. This
extensive network includes major societies
such as PRS (Performing Right Society Ltd.),
JASRAC (Japanese Society for Rights of
Authors, Composers and Publishers), KOMCA
(Korea Music Copyright Association), MACP
(Music Authors Copyright Protection
Berhad), as well as ASCAP (American
Society of Composers, Authors and
Publishers) and BMI (Broadcast
Music, Inc.).

Through
unilateral

reciprocal  and
representation
agreements with these

sister societies, WAMI strengthens its capacity
for cross-border royalty management. These
partnerships enable WAMI to collect royalties
for the use of Indonesian repertoire abroad
while ensuring accountable royalty distributions
to sister societies whose repertoire is used in
Indonesia.

This global network not only expands the reach of
copyright protection but also increases exposure
for Indonesian songwriters and publishers in
international markets. As a result, Indonesian
works enjoy greater opportunities to be used,
recognized, and fairly compensated worldwide.
This synergy also reinforces Indonesia’s cultural
diplomacy through music and ensures that
the economic rights of music creators are
consistently protected at the global level.




List of WAMVI’s Sister Societies (by Reciprocal or Unilateral Agreements)
Americas (North, South, Latin, Caribbean)

No. ! Country E Foreign CMO’s
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List of WAMVI’s Sister Societies (by Reciprocal or Unilateral Agreements)
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List of WAMVI’s Sister Societies (by Reciprocal or Unilateral Agreements)
Asia, Africa and Australia
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OVERVIEW

The year 2024 marked an important
milestone in strengthening WAMI's
institutional framework through the
establishment of its first-ever Legal
Department. This strategic step was
taken in response to the increasing
need for stronger legal safeguards
within ~ collective ~ management
operations, ensuring that all WAMI
processes comply with the prevailing

laws and regulations.

As a collective management organization representing
thousands of members, both songwriters and music
publishers, WAMI operates within adynamic legal landscape.
These include challenges related to unauthorized use of
music, drafting and harmonizing agreements, interpreting
copyright regulations, and coordinating with various
government authorities in resolving copyright-related

disputes.

The establishment of the Legal Department significantly
enhances WAMI's capacity to manage legal risks, provide
sound legal advice, and ensure that all policies and
operational processes have a clear and reliable legal

foundation.

LAW ENFORCEMENT

Throughout 2024, WAMI, through its Legal Department,
initiated legal action against an event organizer (EO) that
used musical works represented by WAMI without obtaining
a license and without making the required royalty payments
mandated under the Copyright Law.

A formal report was submitted to the Civil Servant
Investigators (PPNS) at the Directorate General of
Intellectual Property, Ministry of Law of Republic of Indonesia.
This step was taken to uphold the economic rights of
music creators and rightsholders, to educate music users
regarding the legal obligation to obtain a proper license for
commercial use, and to reinforce WAMI's commitment to
enforcing compliance consistently.

This case serves as an important
precedent in Indonesia's music
licensing landscape. It underscores
that WAMI is not only responsible for
collecting and distributing royalties
but also plays an active institutional
role in ensuring lawful use of music
in public spaces and protecting the
rights of repertoire owners effectively.




Governance
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As a CMO operating under the mandate of
its members, WAMI positions organizational
governance as a core pillar of its operations.
Throughout 2024, WAMI continued to
strengthen its supervisory structure, decision-
making mechanisms, and internal processes to
ensure alignment with its Articles of Association/
Bylaws as well as the international governance
standards set by CISAC. The implementation
of these governance principles ensures that all
processes within the organization are conducted
transparently, accountably, and in accordance
with the mandate of the members.

Since 2023, WAMI has also begun to gradually
adopted the principles of nonprofit governance
based on the Indonesian General Guidelines
for Nonprofit Governance (PUG-ONI) issued
by the National Committee on Governance
Policy (KNKG), a committee established by the
Indonesian Coordinating Minister for Economic
Affairs. These guidelines serve as a reference
for nonprofit organizations such as WAMI to
strengthen accountability and ensure that
organizational activities deliver meaningful
value to members while contributing to the
advancement of the national music industry.

ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURE ON THE
DUTIES, AUTHORITIES, AND MATTERS
REQUIRING BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’

APPROVAL

PUG-ONI provides key recommendations regarding the roles, authorities,
and relationships among the governing bodies of nonprofit organizations. For
associations entity, Chapter 4 outlines governance principles relevant to the role of
the Board of Supervisors. Two recommendations particularly applicable to WAMI
include:
Point 1.1 — organizations should disclose decisions requiring the approval of
the Board of Supervisors.
Point 11.1— organizations should describe the duties of the Board of Supervisors
in the annual report.

In line with these recommendations, the following are the duties, authorities,
and decisions requiring the approval of the WAMI Board of Supervisors as
stipulated in the Articles of Association/Bylaws:
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Duties and Authorities of the WAMI Board of Supervisors

Determine  WAMI's general operational
policies.

Appoint, determine, and dismiss the Board
of Management and members of the
Honorary Council.

Conduct the appointment of the President
Director and Board of Management,
including determining tenure, duties, and
responsibilities.

Provide advice and recommendations
to the Board of Management on WAMI's
operational performance.

Supervise and examine the management
of the organization.

Select and appoint members of the
Honorary Council or Special Council and
the Board of Management.

Determine organizational structure and
operational procedures from time to time.
Receive periodic accountability reports
from the Board of Management, including

strategic policies, operational reports,

activity reports, and financial reports.

9.

10.

1.

12.

13.

14,

15.

16.

Receive periodic reports on activities
and financial usage from the Board of
Managementand report themto members.
Receive reports regarding emergency
licensing fee adjustments that differ from
the standard tariff.

Receive reports on the appointment,
dismissal, and determination of employee
tenure under the Board of Management.
Determine bookkeeping standards for all
WAM I financial records.

Receive reports on every new bank
account opened for WAMIs income
collection activities.

Appoint Board of Supervisors
representatives authorized to co-sign
checks with the Board of Management.
Dismiss members of the Board of
Supervisors proven to have violated the
Articles of Association/Bylaws.

Appoint interim members of the Board
of Supervisors until the next General

Assembly is convened.
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10.

1.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Decisions Requiring the Approval of the WAMI Board of Supervisors

Approval of WAMI's Annual Work Plan
proposed by the Board of Management.
Approval or rejection of WAMI's strategic
plans.

Approval of special Mechanical Rights
mandates from foreign CMOs without
local representation.

Approval of the appointment of the Public
Accountant for the annual audit.

Approval of the WAMI Distribution Rules.
Approval of the WAMI Code of Ethics and
Discipline.

inheritance and

Decisions regarding

succession rights of members’ heirs,
grantees, or legatees.

Approval of the time and venue of the
General Assembly (RUA).

Approval of requests to convene an
Extraordinary General Assembly (RUA-LB).
Approval of re-registration of members
who have resigned twice.

Election of 3 Supervisors from the
Songwriter constituency for the next term.
Election of 6 Supervisors representing
music publishers/rightsholders based on
market share rankings.

Election of 2 Supervisors representing
other genres (eg., regional or religious
music).
Approval of Board of Management
decisions to reject a members work
registration.
Approval of Unlogged Performance
Allocation (UPA) proposals.

Approval of the UPA payment mechanism

to rightsholders.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.
23.

24.

25.

26.

Decisions regarding litigation actions
against unlicensed users (or delegated
authority to the Board of Management).
Approval of the appointment of external
legal counsel.

Approval of the use of a portion of royalty
income for copyright education, training,
litigation, social/cultural activities, and other
lawful purposes.

Approval of the write-off of financial
records (if any).
Approval  of opening  operational
expenditure bank accounts.

Approval of agreements with banks.
Approval of any financial usage not aligned
with WAMI's nonprofit objectives.
Approval of changes to WAMI's business
activities in the Deed of Establishment for
OSS-RBA compliance.

Approval of rules governing other business

activities (if any).

Approval of amendments to the Bylaws
(ART).
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ANNUAL REPORT DISCLOSURE ON THE TENURE OF THE

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS

PUG-ONI Article 412, Point 101 recommends
disclosing the tenure of the Board of Supervisors
in the annual report. WAMI's Board of Supervisors
is elected every three years. The most recent
election took place during the 2022 General
Assembly (RUA) and was formalized through
the Board of Supervisors Meeting on 10 October
2022, and notarized by Notary Dian Fitriana, SH.
M.Kn. on 3 November 2022.

Accordingly, the current Board of Supervisors will
serve until 2025, unless re-elected in accordance
with the Articles of Association/Bylaws.

This section also reflects the implementation of
PUG-ONI Article 4.3 on the working relationship
between the Board of Supervisors and the
Board of Management, particularly Point 7,
which recommends disclosing governance
implementation in the annual report.

Through consistent application of good

governance  principles,  WAMI  remains
committed to strengthening organizational
integrity, enhancing member trust, and ensuring
that all activities of the Association are carried
out professionally and in alignment with
both national and international standards.

This governance approach continues
to serve as a strong foundation for
WAMI in delivering greater impact for

Indonesia’s music ecosystem.




Human Resources &
ORGANIZATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
REPORT -




In 2024, WAMI entered a phase of organizational
capacity building through a series of strategic
human-resource initiatives.  Structural reforms
were implemented to ensure that the organization
is equipped to support increasingly complex
operational needs, driven by the growth of royalty
collections, the expanding volume of digital data,
and stronger governance requirements at both
national and international levels.

As part of this strategy, WAMI's workforce grew
significantly compared with the previous year. As of
December 2024, WAMI employed 67 personnel,
consisting of 568 full-time staff and 9 part-time
staff and interns, almost double the number of
full-time employees in 2023 (36 staff members).
This expansion reflects WAMI's commitment
to strengthening its operational foundation and
ensuring that each function
of the organization is

supported by sufficient
capacity to achieve its
long-term vision.




ORGANIZATIONAL RESTRUCTURING AND
ESTABLISHMENT OF NEW UNITS

The organizational restructuring carried out in
2024 involved a comprehensive evaluation of
departmental functions and scopes of work.
One of the most significant changes was the
separation of documentation and distribution
functions from the former Copyright &
Licensing Department, which previously also
encompassed licensing and membership,

Establishment of the Digital Task Force

WAMI also formed a Digital Task Force, a
specialized unit focusing on the management
of digital royalty claims, particularly from
platforms such as YouTube. Operating under
the coordination of the Operations Department,
this task force plays a key role in WAMI's long-

Establishment of the HRGA &

resulting in an overly broad scope. This policy
led to the establishment of the Operations
Department, dedicated to documentation and
end-to-end processing of royalty distribution
data. The formation of this department also
responds to the rapid increase in digital royalty
transactions and the need for more precise and
measurable distribution processes.

term strategy to maximize Indonesia’s digital
royalty potential. The creation of this team
strengthens WAMI's efforts to optimize music-
usage monetization in the digital environment
and ensure more accurate, data-driven claim
management.

Procurement Department and Legal Department

Toreinforce internal structures, WAMI established
the HRGA & Procurement Department,
responsible for managing employment relations,
general administration, and
procurement through standardized procedures.

organizational

This department ensures that internal processes
run professionally, efficiently, and in alignment
with organizational governance principles.

WAMI also established the Legal Department
to strengthen the legal foundation of its
operational activities. This unit plays an essential
role in ensuring that all processes, ranging from

royalty collection and distribution to external
coordination, comply with legal requirements
and provide certainty for rightsholders.

human-resource
throughout 2024
investment in

The  restructuring and
expansion  undertaken
represents a  strategic
capability.  With  a more

focused structure, new responsive units, and

organizational

strengthened human-resource capacity, WAMI
is now better positioned to navigate the evolving
landscape of the music industry, particularly in
today’s fast-moving digital era.
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WAMI MANAGEMENT PROFILE

As part of WAMI's commitment to transparency
and good organizational governance, this
chapter presents the composition of the Board
of Directors, Executive Management, and the
organizational structure responsible for the
collection, administration, and distribution
of royalties on behalf of the Members. Each

leader and work unit plays a strategic role in
ensuring that WAMI's operations run effectively,
accountably, and in compliance with applicable

regulations and international standards.

WAMI's management structure reflects a clear
division of functionsbetween strategicleadership,
operational execution, and internal control, with
the aim of ensuring that all member services
are carried out professionally, systematically,
and with a strong focus on continuous quality
improvement.
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Board of Directors

Adi Adrian

President Director

A senior musician and songwriter, and one of
the founders of KLa Project, with more than 30
years of experience in the music ecosystem
and industry. He previously served as one of
the commissioners of the National Collective
Management Organization (LMKN) for the
2019-2024 term, and has a strong track record
in copyright governance.

Suseno Adi Prasetyo

Managing Director

A senior executive with more than two decades
of experience in the financial and banking sector,
specializing in Audit, Compliance, and Financial
Strategy. He has held key roles in leading
institutions such as Deloitte, Bank QNB, and Bank
Hana. He holds a Master's degree in Finance
from Trisakti University (2002).

Meidi Ferialdi
Director of Copyright & Licensing

A senior executive with more than two decades of
cross-functional experience in the music industry,
spanning A&R management, marketing at major
labels (Warner Music, EMI), and leadership in music
publishing through PT Aquarius Pustaka Musik,
representing Sony/ATV and EMI Music Publishing.
He holds a degree from Trisakti University (1990).

A
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Memed Umaedi
Head of Operations

A professional with more than 20 years of experience
in  Copyright Collective Management Organizations,
specializing in data management, royalty calculation,
and royalty distribution. He possesses deep expertise in
CMO operational processes. Memed holds a Diploma in

Information Systems from STIE Pamitran Bekasi.

A |
A [ 15
v
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Fitri Hayatunisma

Head of Compliance & International Relations

il

e

Head of Finance Accounting & Tax

A professional with extensive experience in copyright
management, licensing, and royalty distribution through her
role at Universal Music Publishing Group (UMPG). She brings
a multidisciplinary background in finance, audit, and digital
business analysis from her previous positions at Garuda
Indonesia and AirAsia. She holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree from Widyatama University and is currently pursuing
a Master of Management at the University of Indonesia (Ul).

Jamaludin

A finance executive with more than 20 years of professional
experience leading finance, accounting, and taxation
functions across various sectors, including out-of-home
(OOH) media and digital technology. He has a strong track
record in strengthening financial systems, reporting, and
internal controls. Jamaludin holds a Bachelor of Economics
degree in Accounting from STIE Dr. Moechtar Talib, Jakarta.
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Robert Mulyarahardja

Head of Corporate Communication

A professional with extensive experience in the music
industry, covering A&R (Artist & Repertoire), record
production, go-to-market strategy, and copyright
management. His multidisciplinary background—from
music academia to label management—provides a
strong foundation for overseeing WAMI's corporate
communications and public representation. Robert earned
a Bachelor of Music from Berklee College of Music and a
Master of Arts in Creative & Cultural Entrepreneurship from
Goldsmiths, University of London.

Bigi Ramadha
Head of Legal

a

A legal professional specializing in Intellectual Property
(IP), technology, and privacy, with experience at a leading
international IP law firm (Rouse) and strategic roles in
IP management within major corporations. He holds a

Bachelor of Law degree from the University of Indonesia.

- ™

= !

bp

Deas Adam Pradana
Head of HRGA & Procurement

A human resources professional with more than 12 years
of progressive experience across multiple industries,
including retail, FMCG, and technology. He has a strong
understanding of Indonesian labor law and human
capital governance, ensuring regulatory compliance and
organizational process effectiveness. He holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Psychology from State University of Malang
(Universitas Negeri Malang/UNM).
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WAMI Organization Chart

Adi Adrian
President Director

Suseno Adi Prasetyo
Managing Director

Meidi Ferialdi
Director of Copyright
& Licensing

TBA
Head of Digitat
Licensing

Budi Yuniawan Fitri Hayatunisma
Head of Non-Digital Head of Compliance &
Licensing International Reiations

Robert Mulyarahardija NETGEIT] Deas Adam Pradana
Head of Corporate Head of Finance, Head of HRGA &
Communication Accounting & Tax Procurement

Memed Umaedi
Head of Operations

Bigi Ramadha
Head of Legal

Team Membership
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Public & Stakeholder

ENGAGEMENT
REPORT

Throughout 2024, WAMI continued to strengthen
its engagement with the public and key
stakeholders through a series of structured,
creative, and ongoing communication and
educational initiatives. These efforts aim to build
broader understanding of copyright, royalty
governance, and WAMI's role as a collective

management organization at the center of
Indonesia’s music ecosystem. All initiatives were
designed to foster dialogue, enhance literacy,
and cultivate a sense of connection among
songwriters, music publishers,
students, and public.

academics,




PUBLIC EDUCATION INITIATIVES

#Ceritakomposer Series
(Jan—Dec 2024)

lerilaf opefer
Penghargaan Pada
Diri Sendiri Bahwa
Kita Pu

a Value

In 2024, WAMI launched the #Ceritakomposer
series, a monthly collection of short-form videos
published on Instagram Reels, YouTube Shorts,
and TikTok. The series highlights the personal
stories of composers, featuring their creative
processes, challenges, and musical journeys.

Through this accessible format, the program
served not only as an educational tool but also
as a platform for appreciation and inspiration,
showing that every song carries a story worth
celebrating.

#AbisltuPaham Educational Podcast
(Jun—Dec 2024)

To expand its literacy efforts, WAMI launched the
#AbisltuPaham educational podcast, releasing
16 episodes between June and December 2024.
The series explores key topics across the music
industry, from copyright and royalty calculations
to strategies for promoting works in the digital
era. With its simple and approachable format,
the podcast became an important channel for
reaching a wider audience.
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WAMI Goes to Campus (WGTC)

Through the WAMI Goes to Campus (WGTC) program,
WAMI conducted roadshows to universities in Jakarta,
Banten, and West Java, including SAE Institute in
Jakarta, Universitas Pelita Harapan (UPH) in Karawaci,
Padjajaran University (Universitas Padjadjaran/UNPAD)
in Bandung, and University of Indonesia (Ul). Joined by
renowned composers such as Bemby Gusti, Franki
Indrasmoro, and Makki Omar Parikesit, the sessions
equipped students with foundational knowledge on
performing rights. Each participant received a copy
of “Intro to Performing Rights” as a practical guide,
symbolizing WAMI's commitment to nurturing a
copyright-literate new generation of creators.
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CREATIVE COMPETITIONS

Two songwriting competitions were held in 2024, providing creative platforms while deepening
understanding of copyright.

Songwriting Competition — National Education Day

| e——— Held in April 2024, the competition attracted 70
participants from across the country.

Winners were announced on 2 May 2024 and
received a Cardroid condenser microphone.

The program served both as a creative showcase
\ _ K and a reminder of music’s role in education.
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Songwriting Competition — Hari Sumpah
Pemuda (Youth Pledge Day, an Indonesian
National Day)

With the theme “Semangat’ (spirit), the competition
encouraged young music creators to express their
energy and optimism while celebrating Youth Pledge Day.
Participated by 28 contestants, the event provided a national
platform for emerging talents to showcase their creativity at
a national level. Held in October 2024, the winner received a




MEDIA RELATIONS

WAMI conducted strategic media engagement to
broaden public awareness of its performance and
activities. Throughout 2024, two major press releases
were distributed and published by more than 50
national media outlets, significantly enhancing WAMI's
visibility across the public and industry sectors.

End-nf Year
Press Conference

TR P —r—r—— i

WAMVI'S ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (AGM/PTA 2024)

The Annual General Meeting (AGM/
PTA), held on 20 September 2024,
was one of WAMI's largest events of
the year. Attended by 2563 members,
PTA 2024 served as a forum for
transparency and  accountability
regarding WAMI's performance over
the past year.

The meeting also marked the
official launch of ATLAS, WAMIs
new integrated platform  for
documentation, claims, and royalty
distribution, an important milestone
in the modernization of WAMI's data
infrastructure and member services.
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The event was designed to be inclusive and
interactive, featuring Q&A sessions, organizational
performance  presentations, door  prize
giveaways, and a closing performance by Barry
Likumahuwa & The Rhythm Service. The warm
and participatory atmosphere strengthened
WAMI's relationship with its members and
reinforced the collective commitment to building
a more transparent, modern, and sustainable

copyright ecosystem.

WAMI’S INVOLVEMENT IN COPYRIGHT POLICY ADVOCACY

In 2024, WAMI also played an active role in national
policy discussions on copyright and music sector
governance. One of the key engagements was an
official invitation from the relevant commission of
the Indonesian House of Representatives (DPR
RI) to serve as a guest speaker in a Focus Group
Discussion (FGD) on regulatory harmonization,
particularly regarding the roles of CMOs in
Indonesia, LMKN, and royalty collection practices
in Indonesia.

WAMI's participation in this forum reflects its commitment to contributing to public policy development,

especially regarding the revision of the Copyright Law and the governance framework for Indonesia CMOs.

HUKUM KARYA CIPTA &
DALAM TATA KELOLA
DIGITALISASI

I

R R

During the session, WAMI shared perspectives
on the need for regulatory alignment and
strengthened copyright governance, including
clearer delineation of Indonesian CMOs roles and
improved structure for royalty collection practices
to better support Indonesia’s music ecosystem.

The presentation was delivered by WAMI's
President Director, Mr. Adi Adrian , and served
as a reference in the panel discussions alongside
academics, legal practitioners, and other industry
stakeholders.
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE 2020-2024

Financial Performance Trend The 2020-2024 period reflects notable
Past 5 Years

(Number i Millons of Repich) fluctuations in WAMI's financial performance.

The year 2024 marked an important recovery

PS Operational phase following the sharp decline in royalty
EXFie_rt‘)dit'f_Ufe collectionsin 2023. Total income in 2024 reached
Istrioution
Allocation IDR 185 billion, representing a 31% increase
— Total

from the previous year. This rebound signals
a stabilization after the slowdown in the digital
sector experienced in 2023.

211.104

185.000

Although the recovery has not yet returned
incomes to the 2022 peak, the upward trend
in 2024 demonstrates that WAMI's financial
fundamentals have strengthened once again.
This renewed stability provides an essential
foundation  for  supporting operational
13208 B 12.457 B 13368 N 15.009 W 19.933 performance and delivering greater benefits to
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 WAMI's members.

Description

Total Income 93.544 141177 211104 141.036 185.000
Operational Expenditure 13.208 14.457 13.368 15.009 19.933
Distribution Allocation 80.251 126.632 197.736 126.027 165.066

Note:

Total Income = Royalty Collections + Other Income

Operational Expenditure = General & Administrative Expenses + Other Expenses + Income Tux
Distribution Allocation = Accrued Distribution Allocation

OPERATIONAL EXPENDITURE STRUCTURE

% Operational Expenditure/LKMN/Fee and Distribution Allocation
(Number in Millions of Rupiah)

Operation Expenditure LKMN & Fee ! Distribution Allocation

2024 185.000 19.933 1% 8404 5% 156.662 85%
2023 141036 15.009 1% 7.669 5% 118.358 84%
2022 211104 13.368 6% 15.425 7% 182.311 86%
2021 141177 14.457 10% 4842 3% 121878 86%
2020 93544 13.208 14% 4426 5% 75.909 81%

Avg. 10% Avg. 5% Avg. 84%
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WAMI's operational expenditure in 2024
remained below the maximum 20% threshold
stipulated by national regulations. The increase
in expenditure during the year reflects WAMI's
expansion and the strengthening of its internal

Operational Expenditure 2024 vs 2023

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

infrastructure.  Through prudent budgeting,
operational efficiency was maintained and
directed toward activities that deliver the greatest
impact for members.

Salaries, overtime and allowance

IT expenses

Professional Fee

Event & Hospitality Expenses

Operational Expenses and Amortization of Right Use Asset
Depreciation of Fixed Assets

Office Supplies

Business travel

Others

Total General and Administrative Expenses

as stated in Audit Report 2024

*Income Tax Expense

*Re-measurement on defined benefit plan according to

Indonesian Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (PSAK 24)

Total General and Administrative Expenses

8.268.961.935 11.5632.376.959 39%
1.622.104.169 3.089.057.897 90%
1.074.790.914 1.331.015.852 24%

1.2556.435.428 829.905.923 -34%

1.413.918.752 1.382.451.417 -2%
424.263.853 434.369.258 2%
332.731.690 377.593.301 13%
279.486.292 357.684.616 28%
216.747.717 282.098.098 30%
14.888.440.750 19.616.553.321 32%
115.956.721 186.445.828
4.276.849 130.452.200
15.008.674.320 19.933.451.349

Note : *reported in 2024 Audit Report in the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

WAMI's operational expenditure in 2024
increased in line with the growing workforce
needed to support higher work volumes, legal
assistance related to copyright enforcement,
and organizational

restructuring  following

the establishment of several new units. Total
Operational Expenditure in 2024 grew by 32%
compared to 2023. Despite the increase, the
proportion remained well below the national
regulatory ceiling of 20%.

Digital Transformation Driving IT Cost Increase

Information Technology (IT) expenses rose by 90%, reflecting WAMI's intensive digital transformation

phase. Key cost drivers include:

development and implementation of ATLAS as the integrated platform for documentation and royalty

distribution;
enhancement of data security infrastructure; and

increased system capacity to process the growing volume of digital data.

These IT investments represent capitalized capability-building initiatives that will deliver long-term

efficiency gains.
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Increase in Personnel Costs as a Result
of Organizational Expansion

Employee-related costs (salaries, overtime,
and allowances) increased by 39%, making
them the largest cost component. This rise was
driven by:
workforce growth from 36 to 67 employees;
establishment of new units such as Operations,
Legal, HRGA & Procurement, and the Digital
Task Force; and
adjustments in remuneration aligned with
competency requirements for supporting
digitalization.
These investments are structural in nature,
strengthening governance, oversight, and
member services. Further details are provided
in the Human Resources and Organizational
Development Report.

Normalization of Event & Hospitality,
Office Operations, and Travel Costs

Event and Hospitality Costs decreased
significantly by 34% due to efficiency measures
in external activities.

Office Operations and Right-of-Use Asset
Amortization remained stable, with a slight
decrease of 2%, indicating effective cost-control
measures throughout the year.

Travel expenses increased by 28%, mainly
due to participation in international forums such
as CISAC events and other global platforms, as
well as national and regional licensing activities.

Professional Services and Governance
Strengthening

Expenditures on professional services
increased by 24%, related to:
externallegal supportfor copyrightenforcement;

consulting services for system development
and internal process optimization; and
the preparation of legal and governance
documents to meet CISAC standards and
national regulations.
These needs reflect WAMI's increasing
operational complexity, particularly in law
enforcement, process standardization, and
compliance.

Supporting Cost Categories
Experienced Proportional Growth

Supporting expense categories increased
moderately in line with the rise in employee count
and operational activity levels. Office Supplies

grew by 13%, while Miscellaneous Expenses
rose by 30%.
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Non-Operational Items

Income Tax Expenses and Employee Benefit

Remeasurement based on Indonesian
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(PSAK 24) are presented in the 2024 Audited
Financial Statements under The Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income and are not

includedin General and Administrative Expenses.

Both items are non-operational and not related to
WAM's day-to-day cash expenses.

The 2024 operational expenditure structure
reflects a phase of organizational capacity
strengthening. While total expenditure increased,

Income Tax Expense for 2024 amounted
to Rp18645 milion, increasing from Rp115.96
million in 2023 due to higher taxable income and
expanded organizational activities. the rise was strategic in nature, supporting long-
Employee BenefitRemeasurement increased
from Rp4.28 million in 2023 to Rp13045 millionin

2024 due to actuarial adjustments.

term operational foundations while maintaining
total operational expenditures below the national
regulatory limits.

INCOME STRUCTURE

Income Category Contribution to Total Income 2020-2024

(in percentage)

Income Category !

Digital 82% 93% 87% 2% 1% 81%
Karaoke 3% 0% 0% 4% 2% 2%
Overseas 5% 3% 9% 8% 10% 8%
BGM 3% 0% 0% 5% 2% 2%
Broadcast 2% 0% 0% 2% 1% 1%
Live Events 1% 1% 0% 1% 9% 3%
Cinema 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Other Income 5% 2% 3% 6% 5% 4%
TOTAL 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

WAMI's income structure in 2024 shows a
healthier and more balanced composition
compared with 2023. While digital income
remained the dominant contributor, the non-
digital sector recorded significant growth, leading
to a more stable income mix.

WAMI has set a long-term target ratio of
60%:40% (digital: non-digital) as the ideal
and more sustainable income composition.
The improvement in non-digital income in 2024
represents early progress toward this target.
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Royalty Income Growth Year-on-Year (YoY)
(Number in Millions of Rupiah)

Digital 76.291 131.943 183.971 102.128 130.778 125.022
Karaoke 2744 314 - 6.325 4.600 2.797
Overseas 4829 4927 19.653 11131 19.210 11.950
BGM 2404 222 - 7.187 3.998 2.762
Broadcast 1.666 38 - 3.461 1134 1.260
Live Events 559 903 956 2.016 16.517 4190
Cinema - - - - - -
Other Income 5.051 2.830 6.524 8.788 8.763 6.391
TOTAL 93.544 141177 211.104 141.036 185.000 154.372

% Royalty Income Growth Year-on-Year (YoY)

Digital 106% 73% 39% -44% 28%
Karaoke -52% -89% -100% 100% -27%
Overseas 213% 2% 299% -43% 73%
BGM -31% -91% -100% 100% -44%
Broadcast 8% -98% -100% 100% -67%
Live Events -40% 62% 6% M% 719%
Cinema - - - - 0%
Other Income 155% -44% 131% 35% 0%
TOTAL 79% 51% 50% -33% 31%
Non-digital income increased by 38% Overseas Income increased significantly by

compared with the previous year, driven by:
Strengthened licensing activities, including
significantly higher collection targets in 2024;

- A surge in Live Events due to the booming
concert and festival landscape;
The broader
activities nationwide.

recovery of entertainment

Conversely, several categories, such as Karaoke,
Background Music, and Broadcast, experienced
a decline due to normalization effects following
cumulative multi-year payments recorded in
2023, as well as the presence of users who are
still not compliant in paying royalties.

73% in 2024, supported by:

- Stronger international relations;

= Enhanced monitoring of data and payments
from foreign sister societies;

- Increased claims of Indonesian repertoire
abroad.

This growth reflects the rising global trust in
WAMI and further strengthens
position within the international music economy.

Indonesia’s

Other income, including bank interest, remained
stable and continued to provide consistent
supplementary contributions.

=

yd
=g

2
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DISTRIBUTION ALLOCATION AND DISTRIBUTION

PAYABLES

Distribution Allocation and Distribution Payables Period 2020-2024

(Numbers in Million of Rupiah)

Description

Distribution Allocation 75.909 121.878
Distribution Payables 117.365 159.311

182.311 118.358 156.662 131.024
196.559 141.865 171.806 157.381

Ratio 155 1.31

Distribution Allocation

. Distribution Payables

196.559
159.311
141.865
117.365

1.08 120 110 120

171.806

2020 2021 2022

With income increasing in 2024, the allocation for
distribution to songwriters and music publishers also
grew by 32% compared with 2023. This increase reflects
WAMI's commitment to maximizing benefits for members,
in accordance with its mandate as a collective management

organization.

2023 2024 Avg.

Distribution allocation is calculated using the formula:
Total Income - LMKN & Fees - Operational Expenditure

Meanwhile, distribution payables represent the
accumulated obligations owed to rightsholders
up to the current year, which will be paid in the
upcoming distribution cycle.

The ratio between distribution allocation

and distribution payables in 2024 remained
healthy and aligned with applicable accounting
standards. The rise in distribution allocation
demonstrates WAMI’s ability to optimize income
sources while strengthening royalty circulation
for its members.
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2024 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AUDITED)

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Report

WAIAHA MUIIE
INDOHTSIA

wovrwrwanmiid

SURAT PERNYATAAN KETUA
TENTANG TANGGUNG JAWAB ATAS
LAPORAN KEUANGAMN
PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
PADA TANGGAL 31 DESEMBER 2024 DAN
UNTUK TAHUN YANG BERAKHIR
P.!.Qh TANGGAL TERSEBUT

Bertanda-tangan di bawah ini:

MNama : Adi Adrian

Alamat kantor - UAvenue Office Tower Lantai 26,
Urit D, JI. Raya Fasar Minggu
Kav. 18, Pancoran, Jakarda, 12750.

Telepon ; 021 - 80667224

+abatan : Kelua

menyatakan bakwa:

1. Bernanggung iswab atas panyusunan dan
penyajian  laparan  keuangan  Perkumpulan
Wahana Musik indonesia;

2. Laporan keuangan Perkumpulan Wahana Musik
indonesia telah disusun dan digajiken sesual
dengan Standar Akuntansi Keuangan dl Indonesia;

3. a Semua informasi delam laporan keuangan
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia telah
dimuat secara langkap dan benar,

b. Laporan keuangan Perkumpulan Wahana
Musik Indonesia tidak mengandung informasi
atau fakia malterial yang tidak benar, dan fidak
rmenghilangkan informasi alau fakla material;

4. Beranggung jawab atas sigtem pengandalian
internal dalam Perkumpulan ‘Wahana Musik

Indonesia,

Demikian pemyataan ini dibuat dangan sebenamya.

mamicar od

o

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
REGARDING THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
PERKUMPLULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
AS OF DECEMBER 71, 2024
AND FOR THE YEAR THEN ENDED

I, the undersigned:

MName : Adi Adriar

Office address : L'Avenus Office Tower Floor
26, Unit D. N, Raya Fasar
Minggu Kav. 16, Fancoran,

Jakarta, 12780
Phone - 021 - B0BET234
Titie : Chairman

declare thal:

i. We am responsible for the preparation and
prasentation of the financial statements of
FParkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonasia;

2. Thoe fnancial slatarments of Perkumpulan Wahana
Musik indonesis have been prepared and
presenied in accordance with Indonesian Financial
Accounting Standands,

3 a Al inforrnation contained in fhe  financiel
statements of Perkumpulan Wahaha Musik
Indonesia have been disclosed in a complele
and fruthful manner;

b The financial statements of Perkumpuian
Wahana Musik Indonesia do nol conlain any
incofmact information ar materal facts, nor do
they omit information or materal facts;

4. We sre responsible for the infernal confrol systen
of Perkumputan Wahana Musik indonesia.

This statemant {5 made truthftlly.

Afas nama dan mewakili Ketug / For and an behalf of the Chairman's.

; "
AlP

i

-

4
AN U

Adrian. )

Ketua i Chairmnan’s

Jakaria, 18 Juni 2025 f June 18, 2025
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Sona Topas Tower, @0 Floor
JI. Jenderal Sudirman Kav. 26
Jakarta Selatan 12920
Indonesia

Tel: +82 21 2902 6677
forvismazars.com/id

forvss
mazars

No. 00232/2.1011/AU.1/05/1013-3/1/V1/2025
Laporan Auditor Indepandan

Manajemean
Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia

Opiini

Kami lelah mengaudit laporan keuangan Perkumpulan
Wahana Musik Indonasia ("Perkumpulan™), vang lerdiri
dari laporan posisi keuangan tanggal 31 Desamber 2024,
serta laporan penghasiian komprehensil lain, laporan
perubahan aset bersih, dan laporan erus kas untuk lahun
yang berakhir peda angpal tersebut, serta catatan atas
laporan  keuangan, lermasuk  informasi  kebijakan
akuntans material.

Menurul  opini kami, laporan  keuangan  terampic
menyajikan sacara wajar, dalam semua hal yang material,
posisi keuangan Perkumpulan tanggal 31 Desember
2024, werlz kineria keuangan dan arus kasnya untuk
tehun yang barakhir pada tanggal lersebul, sesuai dengan
Standar Akunlansi Keuangan di Indonasia

Basis Opini

Kami melaksanakan audit kami berdasarkan Standar
Audit yang ditetapkan oleh Instilul Akunlan Publik
Indonesia. Tanggung jewab kami menurut  standar
lersebul divraikan leblh lanjul dalam paragral Tenggung
Jawah Auditor terhadap Audil atas Laporsan Kauangan
pada  lsporan  kami. Kami independen lerhadap
Parkumpulan berdasarkan kelentuan elika yanp relevan
dalam audit kami alas laporan keuangan di Indanesia,
dan kami telah memenuhi langgung jawab etika lainnya
berdasarkan kelenluan tersebut, Kami yvakin bahwa bulti
audil yang telah kami peroleh adalah cukup dan tepat
untuk menyediakan sualu basis bagi apini audit kami.

Tanggung Jawab Manajemen dan Pihak yang
Bertanggung Jawab atas Tala Kelola terhadap
Laporan Keuangan

Manajemen berlanggung jawab atas penyusunan dan
penyajian  wajar laporan  keuangan tersabul  sesual
dengan Slandar Akuntansi Keuangan di Indonesia, dan
alas pengencalian internal yang diangpap periu cleh
manajemen unluk memungkinkan penyusunan laporan
keuangan yang babas dari kesalahan penyajian material,
baik yang disebabkan gleh kecurangan  maupun
kesakahan,

Dalam penyusunan  laporan  keuangan, mansjemen
bertanggung  jawab  untuk  menilai | kemempusn
Parkumpulan  dalam  mempartahankan kelangsungan
usahanys, mengungkapkan, sesuai dengan kondisinya,
hal-hal yang berkaitan dengan kelangsungan usaha, dan
mengounakan basis akuntansl  kelangsungan  ussha,
kecuali manajgmen memilki nlensi untuk  melikuidasi
Perkumpulan glau menghentikan operasi, atau tidak
meamiliki altarnalif yang realistis selain melaksanakannya,

322,101 1/ALL1/05/101 25
independent Auditor's Repart

The Managameant
Parkumpwan Wahana Musik Indonasia

Opinion

We have swited the financial siatemenls of
Perkompulan  Wahana  Musik  Indonesis the
Asscoalion’), which comprisa tha statement of financial
position as of Decomber 31, 2024, and the stalement of
ather comprefrensive icome, stalement of changes in nal
assels and statemant of cash flows for the year then
ended, and nates fo the nanciel stalements, Inchiding
malerial accounting polcles.

I vur opinfon, the accompanying financial statemenis
prasant faily, in ail matarial rospects, the fmancial position
of the Associgbon as at Decembar 31, 2024, and s
financial parformance and its cash flows for the year then
ended, in  accordance wilth Indonasian  Financial
Accouriing Standards.

Basis for Opinion

We conductad our audit fn accordance with Stendards on
Auwditing established by the Indonesian Instiute of
Certified Public Accounfants. Our responsibiiies under
those sfandards are further descoibed in the Audifor's
Responsibilites for the Audi of tha Financial Statements
paragraph of our report. We are jindependeni of the
Association i accordance with the afhical raquirements
thet sre refevan! o our audif of the Mnancial stalesmants in
Indonesia. and we have fulilled owr ofther sfhical
respansibitties in accordance with these requirements.
Wa belisve that the audil evidence we have oblainad is
sufficion! and appropriate fo provide & basie for owr
apirian,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged
with Gavernance for the Financial Statemeants

Menagemant s responsible for the proparation and far
presemiabion of the fnencial statements In accordance
with indonesian Financial Accounting Standards, and for
such faternal controf @5 mensgemen! defermines is
necessary o amabfe  the préparation of foancial
staternents thai are free from matarial misstatemant,
whelirer due o fraud or arrar.

In preparing the financial sialements, menagemant &
responsible for assesstng the Association's abiity to
conlinte 85 & going concern, disclsing, as applivable,
malters rafated o going concern and using tha going
concern basis of accounting unless managemaent oilher
intands ko Wukdate the Assocalion or fo cease operalions,
or has no reabstic alfarnative bl o do so.

Aria Kanaka & Rekan
Registerad Public Accountants — License No. : B32/KMA2M4
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Pihek yeng berdanggung jaweb atas lela kekla
hEftanggung jawab untuk mengawasi proses pelaparan
kevangan Perkumpulan.

Tanggung Jawab Auditor terhadap Audit atas Laporan
Keuangan

Tujuan kami adalah unfuk memamleh  keyakinan
memadai lenlang apakah laporan keuangan secara
kassluruhan bebas can kesalahan penyajian material,
baik yarg dsebabkan oleh  kecurangan maupun
kesalahan, dan unluk menerbilkan Bporan audilor yang
mencakup ofini kami. Keyakinan meamadai merupakan
sualu tingkal keyakinan tinggi, namun bukan memupakan
spaty  jaminan  bahwa audit yang dilaksanakan
berdasarkan Standar Audit okan selsly mendeteksi
kesalahan penyajian material kelika hal tersebul ada,
Kesalahan penyajisn dapal disebabkan oleh kecurangan
maupun kesalahan dan dianggap materal jka, baik
secara  individual maupun =sacara agragat, dapat
diekspekiaskan secara waiar akan  memengaruhi
keputuzan  ekonomi yang  diambil  oleh  panggung
berdasarkan laporan keuangan tarssbut,

Sebagai bagian dar suatu audit berdasarkan Standar
Audit, kemi menerapkan pertimbangen profesional dan
mempartahankan skeptisisme profesional selama audil.
Kami juga:

= Mengidentiikasi dan manilai isiko kesalahan penyajian
material dalam  laperan  keuangan, baik yang
disebabkan oleh kecurangan maupun kesalahan,
mendesain dan melaksanakan prosedur audit yang
responsil berhadap rsiko lersebul, seda memeroleh
bukti audit yang cukup dan tepat untuk menyadiakan
basis bagi opini kami. Risiko fidak terdeteksinya
kesalahan penyajian material yang disebabkan oleh
kecurangan lebin tinggi dar yang discbabkan oleh
kezalahan, karena kecurangan dapat melibatkan
kolusi, pemalsyan, penghilangan secara sengaja,
_pet:wa:ann salah, atau pengabaian  pengendalisn
intarnal.

» lMemeroleh suatu pemahaman tentang pengendalian
nternal yang relevan dengan audit uniuk mendesain
prosadur Audit yang tepat sasual dengan kondisimy,
tetapi bukan untuk Wwjean menyalakan  opini ales
keafaklivitasan pengendalian intermal Parkumpulan,

=« Mengevaluasi ketepalan kebijakan akuntansi yang
digunakan serta kewajaran estimasl akuntansi dan
pengungkapan lerkail yang dibual oleh manajemen

= Menyimpulkan ketepatan penggunaan basis akuntansi
kelangsungan wsaha oleh manejemen  dan,
verdasarkan bukli sudil yang diperolzh, apakah
tardapat suatu hetidakpastian material yang lerksit
dengan  pensliwa  sleu kondisi  yang  dapal
menyebabkan keraguan signifikan atas kemampuan
Perkumpulan unfuk memperahenkan kelengsungan
usahanya. Ketika kaml menyimpulkan hahwa terdapat
suatu ketidakpastian material, kami diharuskan untuk
menarik perhalian dalam laporan audilor kami ke
pENguURgkapan tarkait dalam laporan keuangan atau,
jika pengungkapan tersebut tidek memadai, harus
menentukan apakah periu untuk memodifikasi opini
kami, Kesimpulan kami didasarkan pada bukt audit
yang diperoleh hingga tanggal laparan auditor kami.
Mamun, peristiwa atau kondisi masa depan dapat
menyebatkan Perkumpulan fidak dapal
mempertahankan kelangsungan usaha.

forvss
mazars

Those changed with govemance are responsible for
overseeaing the Asscoialion s fnancial raporiveg process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Our ahjactives ara in obtaln reasonahis assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misslatermant, whether due o faud or emror, end
fo igsua an awditor's report that includes owr opinion.
Reasonabie sssuranice i3 & high level of assurance, but /s
nat a guarantee thatl an awtit conducted in accordence
with Slandards on Awditing will always detect a material
misstatamant when i exisis. Mizslatenents can arse from
frawd ar arror and ara considarad matarial If, indivicually ar
it the sggregale, hey couwld reesonebly be expecled o
influance the aconomic dacisions aof users fakan on tha
bagis of these financial statements.

Az par! of an audlf in accordance with Slandards on
Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the sudif, We aiso:

« identify and szsess the risks of maiermal missialement
af tha finsncial statemeants, whather due to Faud or
arver, design and pedfovanr audil procedres respensve
fo thosa risks, and oblaln audif avidence that Is
sufficient and appropriale o provide a basis for our
opmion. The rnsk of not gstecting & malermal
migstalernant resuiting from fraud is higher than for one
resulling frovn error, as frevd may nvolve collusion,
forgary, intantfonal omissions, misrepraseniations, or
the override of infernal conlrol.

» Obtain an understanding of infermal conirol refevan! o
the audit in order fo desfgn avoil procedwres thal are
appropriate in the circumstances, bt not for the
purpose of expressing an opinien on the effecliveness
of the Association's internal control,

« Evaluate the appropriatencss of accounting policias
usad and the ressonsblenass of sccounting eslimaltes
and redated disclosures made by management.

+ Conclida an the appropriatenass af managaman’s use
of the golng concern basis of accounting and, based on
the sudit evidence obtatned, whsther a materisl
wncertainly exists related o events or conditions that
may cas! significant doubt an the Association’s abilty fo
oot as 4 going concam. If we conclude fhat a
mizienal uncerbainly exisls, we are reguired o draw
aftanfinon  in owr  auditor’s raport B the  relafed
discloswres in the financial statements or, ¥ such
disclosuras are inadequale, lv modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obiained
up {o the date of our audiors reporl, However, filure
avanis or condiions may cause the Association &
cease o conlnue 83 & going coneert,
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+ Mengevaluasi penyajian, struktur, dan isi laporan

keuangzan SRCAra keseluruhan, termasik
pengungkapennys, dan apakah lagoran keuangan
mencerminkan  transaksi  dan  perislwa yang

mendasarinya dengan sualu cara yang mencapal
penyajien wajar,

Kami mangomunikasikan kepada pihak yang bertanggung
jawalb asles lata kelala mengenal. antara lain, TUaEng
lingkup den saat yang direncanakan alss audil, ssria
temuan  audil signifikan, termasuk  setiap  defisiensi
signifikan dalam pengendalian internal yang teridentifikasi
obah kami selama audit.

Kami juge mamberkan suatu permyatasn kepada pihak
yang bertanggung jawsb atas tata kedola babwa kami
telah memaluhi ketentuan atika yang relevan mengenai
independensi, dan mengomunikasikan seluruh hubungan,
serta  hal-hal lain  yang dianggap secara  wajar
berpengaruh  terhadap  independensi kami  dan, jika
ralevan, pengamanan lerkait.

forwvss
mazars

= Evaluate tha averall presentation, struclure and confent
of the financial! stalements, inchuding the discicsures,
and whather the fnancial slatermenis represeni the
underying trangactions and evems in 8 mannar thal
achieves fair preseniation,

We communicats with those charged wilth governsnce
regarding, among ofiier matlers, he planned scope and
timing of the audi! and significant audit findings, fnchwding
eny significant deficiancies i inlornal control thel we
idaniify during our audil,

We also provide those charged with govemance with a
statemant that we have complied wilh refevanl ethical
requirements  regerding  widependence, and  io
commurncate with them all ralationships and other maliers
that may reasonably be thowgh! o besr on our
indapendence, and where sppiicabia, relatad safequards.

ARIA KANAKA & REKAN
Kentor Akuntan Publil' Registered Public Accountanis

s

di Hadi Santoso
MNo. AP, 1013

18 Juni 2025

!

June 18, 2025
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
LAPORAN POSISI KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As of December 31, 2024

{Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

Catatan/
Note 2024 2023

ASET ASSETS
ASET LANCAR CURRENT ASSETS
Kas dan setara kas 4 173.988.698.667 148.419.251 264 Cash and cash equivalents
Piutang royalti § 19.847 . 7552589 16.408.027 453 Rayalty receivables
Biaya dibayar di muka Prapaid expenses

dan uang muka & 558.113.038 263.799.808 and advances
JUMLAH ASET LANCAR 194.394.567.004 165.091.078.525 TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
ASET TIDAK LANCAR NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Aset tetap - neto 7 633.755.357 875.427.208 Fixed assefs — net
Aset hak guna g8 2.542,968.900 1.911.780.842 Right-of-use assel
Aset lain-lain 132,050,500 82.152.100 Other assets
JUMLAH ASET TOTAL NON-CURRENT

TIDAK LANCAR 3.308.774.766 2.873.350.948 ASSETS
JUMLAH ASET 197.703.341.770 167.964.438.473 TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITAS DAN ASET BERSIH LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
LIABILITAS LIABILITIES
LIABILITAS JANGKA PENDEK CURRENT LIABILITIES
Utang distribusi g 171.806.880.847 141.885.690.304 Distribution payables
Utang pajak 1Za 10.425.582.721 5.984.187.435 Taxes payables
Akrual 10 12.302.550.564 17.911.555.261 Accruals
Utang lain-lain 163.843.408 187.757.661 Other payables
Liabilitas sewa — jangka pendek 8 670.606.874 804.749.967 Lease liability — short term
JUMLAH LIABILITAS TOTAL CURRENT

JANGKA PENDEK 195.369.474.214 166.773.940.628 LIABILITIES
LIABILITAS JANGKA PANJANG NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Liabilitas sewa = jangka panjang 8 1.732.276.178 940 497 845 Lease liability = long ferm
Liabilitas imbalan kerja 1" 351.591.377 - Employee benefit iahilities
JUMLAH LIABILITAS TOTAL NON-CURRENT

JANGHA PANJANG 2.083.867.556 940,497,845 LIABILITIES
JUMLAH LIABILITAS 197.453.341.770 167.714.438.473 TOTAL LIABILITIES
ASET EERSIH NET ASSETS
Asat barsih Permanently restricted

terikat permanen 13 250.000.000 250.000.000 net assefs
JUMLAH ASET BERSIH 250.000.000 250.000.000 TOTAL NET ASSETS
JUMLAH LIABILITAS DAN TOTAL LIABILITIES AND

ASET BERSIH 197.703.341.770 167.964 438.473 NET ASSETS

Catatan atas laporan keuandgan tedampir menipakan bagian
yang bdak lerprsabkan dan aporn kewangan secars kessuruhan

The accompanying nofas fo financial shafemeants form

an wilegral part of hese hnancal stalements laken a5 a whols,
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
LAPORAN PENGHASILAN KOMPREHENSIF LAIN
Untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal

31 Desember 2024

[Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA

STATEMENT OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the year ended
December 31, 2024
{Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise slated)

Catatan/
Note 2024 2023
Pendapatan royalti 14 176.236.227.911 132.247.723.679 Royalty revenues
Beban distribusi 15 (165.066.090.051) (126.027.003.957) Distribution expenses
SURPLUS BRUTO 11.170.137.860 6.220.719,722 Gross profit
Beban umum dan General and administrative
administrasi 186 (19.616.553.322)  (14.888.440.750) EXpenses
Pendapatan Other incomne
Lain-lain - neto 17 8.763.212.844 8.787.954.558 nef -
Surplus sebelum Surplus before
pajak penghasilan 316.807.482 120.233.570 Income 1ax
Beban pajak penghasilan 12b (1B6.445.282) (115.856.721) Income tax expense
Surplus tahun berjalan 130.452.200 4.276.849 Profit the year
Penghasilan Other Comprehensive
komprehensif Lain income
Fos yvang tidak akan lterns that will not be
Direklasifikasi ke aset bersih reclagsified to net assels:
Pengukuran kembali atas Re-measurement on
program manfaat pasti e (130.452.200) (4.276.848) defined benefit plan
Jumlah surplus komprehensif Total comprehensive income
tahun berjalan - - for the year

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
LAPORAN PERUBAHAN ASET BERSIH

Untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal

3 Desember 2024

(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

FPERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the year ended

December 31, 2024

(Expressed in Rupiah, unfess otherwise stated)

2024 2023
ASET BERSIH YANG TIDAK DIBATASI: UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS:
Saldo awal - Begrirmng balarce
SUrplus untuk tahun ini Supius for the vear
Saldo akhir aset bersih Ending balance of
yvang tidak dibatasi - Unrestricted net assets
ASET BERSIH YANG DIBATASI PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED
SECARA PERMAMNEN: NET ASSETS:
Aset bersih yvang dibatasi secara Permanently restricled nel assels
permanen di awal tahun Z250.000.000 250.000.000 at the Beginning of the Year
Saldo akhir asat bersih Ending balance of parmaneantly
yang dibatasi secara permanen 250.000.000 250.000.000 restricted net asseis
JUMLAH ASET BERSIH 2E60.000.000 TOTAL NET ASSETS

250.000.000

Catatan slas laporan kevancgan berdampr merupakan bagn
kesehmuhan.

vanyg tidak terpisahkan dari laporan keuangan secara

Ther accompanying noles o nancal stalemans form
an infegral part of these financial stalements taken as a whol.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA

LAPORAN ARUS KAS

Untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal

3 Desember 2024

(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

ARUS HAS DARI
AKTIVITAS OFERASI
Surplus sebedum pajak penghasilan
Panyasuaian surplus
yang diperoleh dan aktivitas opérass:
Pamyusulan asal lelap
Amortisasi
aset hak guna
aset idak berwujud
Biaya imbalan
pasca kerja
Biaya lainnya
Pendapatan bunga

Perubahan asel dan liabilitas:
Prutang royvalli
Biaya dibenvar di muka
dan uang muka
Aset lainmya
Utang distnbus

Ulang pagak.
Akrual

Litang lain-kain
Penenmaan bunga
Fembayaran pajak penghasilan

HKas neto yang (digunakan untuk)!
Diperoleh dari aktivitas oparasi

ARUS KAS DARI
AKTIVITAS INVESTASI

Parolehan aset letap

Perolehan aset hak guna

Kas neto yang
digunakan untuk aktivitas investasi

ARUS KAS DARI
AKTIVITAS PENDANAAN

Penambahan kewajiban sewa

Pombayaran kowajiban sowa

Kas neto yang
diparoleh dari aktivitas pendanaan
KENAIKAMPENURUNAN) NETD
KAS DAN SETARA KAS

KAS DAN SETARA KAS
PADA AWAL TAHUN

KAS DAN SETARA KAS
FADA AKHIR TAHUN

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended
December 31, 2024

{Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2024 2023
316,897 482 120233 570
434 360 258 261 740,011
B79.473.791 229,064 398
162,523,842
221 130477 170,679 560
(350,465,346 (442.058,042)
1.301.384.362 502.183.348
(3,430,727 B46) {(18.112.626.728)
(294.313.230) T09.9092.977
(40,898 400) (26.586.033)
20.941.100.343 (54.602.999,962)
4,431 405,286 542,606,933
(5600004, 705) 4401135172
(33.014.253) {(119.781.624)
350.495 346 442 058,042
(186.445.275) (113.831.284)
26.411.171.628 (64.337.649.179)
(168597 400) (525.699.831)
(1.310.662.05T) (278.942.000)
{1.499,359, 488) (804.841.921)
1,515 880 764 632 051 976
(858 254 523) (563.250,349)
657.635.241 68.801.627
25.569.447.403 (65.113.489.473)

148.419.2561.264

213.632.740.737

173.988.608.667

148.419.261.264

Catatan alas laporan keuandgan terampir menipakan bagian
yang bdak lerpsahkan dan bporan keuancan secars kessturnuhan,

CASH FLOWS FROM
OFERATING ACTIVITIES
SUrpLes bafons income fax
Addjsirmant on surplus
providad by oparaling activites'
Depreciation of fixed azsels
Amortization of
nght-of-use assols
Armortization of
intandgible assels
Post-employement
banadif cxpenses
Other axpensoes
Intevest ncome

Changaes i 85500 arnd Tabivhes:
Royally recenvables
Frapaid expanses

and advances

Other azsels
Listmbution payables
Tax payables
Accrusls
Oither payablos

Intorest receipt

Faymen io Income fax

Net cash (used for)! provided by
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIMITY

Acguisiton of fxed assols

Acquisifion of nighl-of-use assels

Net cash used by
investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Ackdition of lpaze Kabilities

Payment of lease Nabilities

Nei cash provided by
financing activities

NET INCREASE{DECREASE) IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

The accompanying nolés fo financial statements fom
an mnitegral part of these hnancial statermenls laken az g whole,
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

1. UMUM

Pendirian Perusahaan

Perkumpulan Wahana Musik Indonesia
("Perkumpulan”) didirikan pada tanggal 17 Agpril
2015 berdasarkan Akta Motaris Mo. 09 dibuat oleh
Syarifudin, SH. Akta tersebut telah mendapatkan
pengesahan dari Menteri Hukum dan Hak Asasi
Manusia Republik Indenesia dalam surat keputusan
Ma. AHU-0000571.AH.01.07 Tahun 2015 tanggal
21 April 2015,

Anggaran dasar Perkumpulan telah mengalami
beberapa kali perubahan, terakhir dengan Akta
Motaris No. 04 tanggal 2 Mei 2024 dari notaris Dian
Fitriana, SH, MKn., tentang Persetujuan Perubahan
Susunan Pengurus dan Pengawas Perkumpulan
Wahana Musik Indonesia. Anggaran dasar tersebut
telah diterima cleh Kementernan Hukum dan Hak
Asasi Manusia Republik Indonesia, melalui Surat
Keputusan Mo. AHU-0000547.AH.01.08 Tahun
2024 tanggal 3 Mei 2024.

Kegiatan Perkumpulan saat ini adalah melakukan
penghimpunan rovalti dan penggunaan karya cipta
atas hak mengumumkan sesuai dengan ketentuan
yang bedaku di Indonesia. Perkumpulan
mendistribusikan royalti kepada pemilik karya cipta
yang terdaftar sebagai anggota. Pemilik karya cipta
juga akan mendapatkan laporan distribusi secara
berkala melalui ekspedisi danfatau surat elektronik.

Kantor Perkumpulan terletak di L'Avenue Office
Tower Lantai 28, Unit D, JI. Raya Pasar Minggu
Kav.18, Pancoran, Jakarta, 12780,

. Ketua, Sekretaris, Bendahara, dan Karyawan

Ketua, Sekretaris, dan Bendahara Perkumpulan
pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024 dan 2023 adalah
sebagai berikut:

1. GENERAL

a. Establishment of the Company

Perkumpulan Wahana Musik [ndonesia (the
“Association”) was established in Jakarla dafed
April 17, 2015 based on Notaral Deed No.09 of
Syarifudin, SH. The Deed of Establishment was
approved by the Minister of Law and Human Rights
of the Republic of Indonesia in Decision Letter No.
AHU-0000571.AH.01.07  Tahun 2015 daled
Apni 21, 2013.

The Association’s Arficles have besn amended
several times, the most recently by Notanal Need
No. 04 dated May 2, 2024 from Dian Fitriana, SH,
MKn., conceming the approval of Changes in the
Composition of the Management and Chaimman
Board fto the Association of Wahana Musik
Indonesia. The amendment was acknowledged by
the Minister of Law and Human Righis of the
Republic of Indonesia through its Decision Letter
No. AHU-0000547 AH.01.08 Tahun 2024 daled
May 3, 2024

The cumrent activity of the Association is collecting
royallies of performing righfs based on mght fo
publish regulations in Indonesia. The Association
distrbuted royalties to registered members of the
Association. Members will also get the distribution
repart periodically by mail and’or electronic lefter.

The Association’s office iz located at L'Avenue
Office Tower Floor 26, Unit D, JI. Raya Fasar
Minggu Kav. 16, Pancoran, Jakarta, 12780

. Chairman, Secretary, Treasurer, and Employess

Chairman, Secretary, and freasurer of the
Association as of December 31, 2024 and 2023
were as follow:

Z0Z3

2024
Keslua A Adnan
Sekiretans Fitri Hayatunisma
Bendahara Jamaludin

Chaco Adhebaskara
Ekananda Hindarto
Fitri Hayatunisma
Sih Aisyah

Charrrmare

Secretary
Treasury

71

WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA



PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

{Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

1. UMUM (lanjutan)

b. Ketua, Sekretaris, Bendahara, dan Karyawan

(lanjutan)

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024, Perusahaan
memiliki karyawan sebanyak 52 karyawan

(2023: 42 karyawan) (Tidak diaudit).

c. Penyelesaian Laporan Keuangan

Manajemen bertanggung jawab atas penyusunan
dan penyajian laporan keuangan, yang telah
diselesaikan dan disetujui untuk diterbitkan oleh

Ketua Perkumpulan pada tanggal 18 Juni 2025.

2. INFORMASI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL

Laporan keuangan telah disajikan sesuai dengan
Standar Akuntansi Keuangan di Indonesia “(SAK)",
yang mencakup Pemnyataan Standar Akuntansi
Keuangan (‘PSAK") dan Interpretasi Standar Akuntansi
Keuangan (“ISAK") yang dikeluarkan oleh Dewan
Keuangan |katan Akuntan

Standar  Akuntansi
Indonesia.

a. Dasar Penyusunan Laporan Keuangan

Laporan keuangan disusun berdasarkan asumsi
kelangsungan usaha serta atas dasar akrual,
kecuali laporan arus kas. Dasar pengukuran dalam
penyusunan laporan keuangan ini adalah konsep
biaya perolehan, Kecuali beberapa akun tertentu
pengukuran  lain
sebagaimana dijelaskan dalam kebijakan akuntansi

yvang didasarkan pada

masing-masing akun tersebut.

Laporan arus kas disusun dengan menggunakan
metode tidak langsung dengan mengklasifikasikan
arus kas sebagai aktivitas operasi, investasi dan

pendanaan.

1.

2

GENERAL (continued)

b. Chalrman, Secretary, Treasurer, and Employess
(continued)

As of December 31, 2024, the Company has 52
employees (2023 42 employees) (Unaudited),

c. Completion of the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and
prasentation of the financial statements, which were
completed and authorized for issuance by the
Association Chairman on June 18, 2025.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Indonesian Financial Accounting
Standards (SAK)", which comprize the Stafements of
Financial Accounting Standards (PSAK" and
Interprefations of Financial Accounting Standards
(“ISAKT) issued by Financial Accounting Standards
Board of the Indanesian Institute of Accountants.

a. Basis of Preparation of the Financial
Statements

The financial stalement was prepared based on
going concem assumption, and wuse the accrual
basis method, except for the statement of cash
flows. The financial statement was measured Lsing
the historical cost concept of accounting, except for
specific accounts which were measured according
to the related accounting policies.

The statement of cash flows has been prepared
based on the indirect method by classifying the cash
flows on the basis of operafing, investing and
financing activifies.

ANNUAL REPORT 2024
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. INFORMAS! KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
{continued)

a. Dasar Penyusunan Laporan Keuangan (lanjutan) a. Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

Penyusunan laporan keuangan berdasarkan SAK
memeriukan penggunaan estimasi dan  asumsi
akuntansi penting tertentu. Penyusunan |aporan
keuangan juga mengharuskan manajemen untuk
membuat pertimbangan dalam proses penerapan
kebijakan akuntansi Perkumpulan. Area-area yang
memerlukan tingkat pertimbangan yang lebih tinggi
atau kompleks, atau area dimana asumsi dan
estimasi yang berdampak signifikan terhadap
laporan keuangan diungkapkan dalam Catatan 3.

Kebijakan akuntansi wyang diterapkan dalam
penyusunan laporan keuwangan tahun beralan
adalah konsisten dengan kebijakan akuntansi yang
diterapkan dalam penyusunan laporan keuangan
untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal
31 Desember 2023, kecuali bagi penerapan
beberapa SAK yang telah direvisi efektif sejak
tanggal 1 January 2024,

Perubahan pada Pernyataan Standar Akuntansi
Keuangan (“PSAK") dan Interpretasi Standar
AKuntansi Keuangan (“ISAK")

Standar-standar berikut ini berlaku untuk laporan
keuangan untuk periode yang dimulai pada atau
satelah 1 Januari 2024:

= PSAK 201 (Amendemen), “Penyajian Laporan
Keuangan” - Liabiltas Jangka Panjang dengan
Kovenan

- PSAK 116 (Amendamen), “Sewa" - Liabilitas
Sewa pada Transaksi Jual dan Sewa Balik

- PSAK 207 (Amendemen), “Laporan Arus Kas®
dan PSAK 107 (Amendemen), “Instrumen
Keuangan: Pengungkapan® - Pengaturan
Pembiayaan Pemasok

Standar dan interpretasi standar akuntansi baru
tertentu  telah dikeluarkan tetapi tidak wajib
diterapkan pada periode yang berakhir
3 Desember 2024 dan belum diterapkan secara
dini oleh Perusahaan.

- PSAK 117, "Kontrak Asuransi® dan

- PSAK 221 (Amendemen), “Pengaruh Ferubahan
Kurs Valuta Asing”

(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with SAK requires the use of cerfain
critical accounting estimates and assumphions. It
also requires management fo exercise ifs
judgement in the process of applying the
Association’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumplions and
estimates are significant fo the financial statements
are disclosed in Note 3.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation
of the current financial statemenis are consistent
with those made in the preparation of the financial
statements for the year ended December 31, 2023,
except for the adoption of several amended SAKs
effective January 1, 2024.

Changes 1o the Srtatements of Financial
Accounting  Standards  (“PSAK") and
Interpretations of  Financial  Accounting
Standards (“ISAK")

The following standards are effective for financial
statements for the period commencing on or after
January 1, 2024:

= PSAK 2071 (Amendment), “Presentation of
Financial Statements” - Non-curmrent Liabilities
with Covenants

- PSAK 116 [Amendment), “Leases™ - Lease
Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

- FPSAK 207 (Amendment), “Statement of Cash
Flows” and PSAK 107 (Amendment), “Financial
Instrument: Disclosure” - Supplier Finance
Arrangement

Cerfain  new accounlting slandards and
interpretafions have been published that are not
mandatory for the period ended December 31, 2024
and have not been early adopted by the Company.

- PSAK 117, Insurance Contract” and

- PSAK 221 (Amendment), “The Effeclts of
Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”

/3
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. INFORMAS|I KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANZ] MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

a. Dasar Penyusunan Laporan Keuangan (lanjutan)

Perubahan pada Pemyataan Standar Akuntansi
Keuangan (“PSAK") dan Interpretasi Standar
Akuntansi Keuangan (“ISAK") (lanjutan)

Pada saat penerbitan laporan Kkeuangan,
Perkumpulan sedang mempelajan dampak yang
mungkin timbul dari penerapan standar dan
amendemen ini pada laporan keuangan
Perkumpulan.

b. Transaksi dengan Pihak-pihak Berelasi

Perusahaan melakukan transaksi dengan pihak-
pihak berelasi sebagaimana didefinisikan dalam
PSAK 224 "Pengungkapan Pihak-Pihak Berelasi”.
Seluruh transaksi dan saldo yang signifikan dengan
pihak-pihak berelasi diungkapkan dalam catatan
atas laporan keuangan.

Transaksi ini dilakukan berdasarkan persyaratan
vang disetujui oleh kedua belah pihak, dimana
persyaratan tersebut mungkin tidak sama dengan
transaksi lain yang dilakukan dengan pihak yang
tidak beralasi.

c. Penjabaran Mata Uang Asing
(1) Mata Uang Fungsional dan Penyajian

ltem-item yang disertakan dalam laporan
keuangan diukur menggunakan mata uang
vang sesuai dengan lingkungan ekonomi
utama di mana entitas beroperasi ("‘mata uang
fungsional®).

Mata uang penyajian yang digunakan dalam
penyusunan laporan keuangan adalah mata
uang Rupiah ("Rp"), yang juga merupakan
mata uang fungsional Perkumpulan.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(continued)

a. Baslis of Preparation of the Financial

Statements (confinued)

Changes to the Siatements of Financial
Accounting  Standards  (“PSAK")  and
Interpretations of  Financial  Accounting
Standards (“ISAK") (continued)

Az at the issuance dafe of the financial statements,
the Associafion is stll evaluating the potential
impact of these standards and amendments on the
Association’s financial statements.

. Transactions with Related Parties

The Company enters into transactions with relafed
parties as defined in PSAK 224 “Related Party
Disclosures™. All significant transaclions and
balances with related parties are disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements.

The transactions are made based on terms agreed
by the parties. Such ferms may not be the same as
those of the transactions befween unrelated parties,

. Foreign Currency Translation

(1) Functional and Presentation Currency

ltems included in the financial statements are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the eniify
operates (the functional currency”).

The presentation currency used in the
preparation of the financial sfatements is
Indonesian Rupiah (“Rp"), which is also the
functional currency of the Association.
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PERKUMPLULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. INFORMAS| KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(lanjutan) (eontinued)
c. Penjabaran Mata Uang Asing (lanjutan) ¢. Foreign Currency Translation jcontinued)

(2) Transaksidan Saldo (2) Transactions and Balances

Transaksi dalam mata wang asing dijabarkan
ke dalam mata wang Rupiah dengan
menggunakan kurs yang berlaku pada tanggal
transaksi. Pada setiap tanggal pelaporan, aset
dan liabilitas moneter dalam mata uang asing
dijabarkan ke dalam mata uang Rupiah
menggunakan kurs penutup. Kurs yang
digunakan sebagai acuan adalah kurs yang
dikeluarkan oleh Bank Indonesia. Keuntungan
dan kerugian selisin kurs yang timbul dari
penyelesaian transaksi dalam mata uang
asing dan dari panjabaran aset dan liabilitas
moneter dalam mata wang asing secara umum
diakui di dalam laba rugi.

Kurs yang digunakan pada tanggal laporan
posisi keuangan adalah sabagai berikut:

Foreign currency fransactions are franslated
into Rupiah using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the fransactions. At sach
reporting date, monetary assels and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency are franslated
inte Rupiah using the closing exchange rate.
Exchange ralte used as benchmark iz the rate
which is issued by Bank Indonesia. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
sefflament of such fransactions and from the
translafion al period-end exchange rafes of
maonetary assels and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are generally recognized in
the profit or loss,

The exchange rate used as af the financial
position date was as follows:

2024 2023
Dolar Amerika Senkat ("USD") 16.162 15.416 United States Doflar ("UED")

d. Instrumen Keuangan d. Financial Instruments

(1) Aset Keuangan (1) Financial Assers

Perkumpulan mengklasifikasikan aset
keuangan dalam kategori berikut:

a) Biaya perolehan diamortisasi;

b} Milai wajar melalui laba rugi (“FVTPL");

c) Milai wajar  melalui penghasilan
komprehensif lain (*FVOCI™).

Perkumpulan menetapkan klasifikasi aset
keuangan setelah pengakuan awal dan, jika
diperbolehkan dan sesuai, akan melakukan
evaluasi atas klasifikasi ini pada setiap akhir
tahun keuangan.

Fada tanggal 31 Desember 2024, aset
keuangan Perkumpulan terdiri dar kas dan
setara kas dan piutang royalti,

Perkumpulan mengklasifikasikan aset

keuangannya sebagai biaya perclehan
diamortisasi.

¢)

The Associalion classifies financial assels info
categories below:

a) Amorized cosls;

B} Fair value through profit or loss (‘“FVTPL");

¢) Fair value through other comprehensive
income ("FVOCI),

The Association classifies financial assets after
initial recognition and, F # is allowed and
appropriate, this classification will be evaluated
at the end of each financial year.

As of December 31, 2024, the Associalion’s
financial assefs consist of cash and cash

equivalents and royally receivables,

The Associalion’s classifies ifs financial assels
at amorfized cost.

ya
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tangaal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajkan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

{Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise sfated)

2. INFORMAS| KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

d. Instrumen Keuangan (lanjutan)
(1) Aset Keuangan (lanjutan)

Suaty aset keuangan divkur pada biaya
perclehan diamortisasi jika kedua kondisi
berikut terpenuhi:

a) Aset keuangan dikelola dalam medel bisnis
yang bertujuan  untuk  memiliki - aset
keuangan dalam rangka mendapatkan arus
kas kontraktual, dan

b) Persyaratan kontraktual aset keuangan
yang menimbulkan arus kas yang semata
dari pembayaran pokok dan bunga dari
jumlah pokok terutang.

Pada saat pengakuan awal, aset keuangan
yang diklasifikasikan sebagai biaya perolehan
diamortisasi diukur pada nilai wajamya,
ditambah biaya transaksi vyang dapat
diatribusikan secara langsung. Pendapatan
bunga dihitung dengan menggunakan metode
suku bunga efektif dan diakui dalam laba rugi.

Perkumpulan menghentikan pengakuan aset
keuangan, jika dan hanya jika hak kontraktual
atas arus kas yang berasal dar aset keuangan
tersebut berakhir, atau hak kontraktual untuk
menerma arus kas yang berasal dar aset
keuangan ditransfer ke entitas lain; atau hak
kontraktual untuk menerima arus kas yang
berasal dari aset keuangan tetap dimiliki namun
dengan menanggqung liabilitas kontraktual
untuk membayar arus kas yang diterima
tersebut kepada satu atau lebih pihak penerima
melalui suaty kesepakatan yang memenuhi
persyaratan tertentu., Kelika Perkumpulan
mentransfer aset keuangan, maka
Perkumpulan mengevaluasi sejauh mana
Perkumpulan tetap memiliki risike dan manfaat
atas kepemilikan aset kewangan tersebut.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
{continued)

d. Financial Instruments (continued)

{1) Financial Assets (continued)

Financial assets measured at amorfized cost if
these conditions are mef:

a) Financial assetfs are managed in business
madel aims to have financial assets to
obtain contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of financial assets that
generale cash flows solely from principal
payment and inferest from the principal
amount owed.

At initial recognition, financial assets classifled
as amortized cost are measured at fair value,
plus directly attributable transaction costs.
Interest income is calculated using effective
interest rate method and recognized in profit or
loss.

The Association derecognizes financial assets
if, and only if the conlractual rights to the cash
flows from the financial asset expires; or the
confractual rights fo receive the cash flows from
the financial assets are transferred to another
entify, or the confractual righfs to receive the
cash flows from the financial azzet remains but
assumes a contractual obligation fo pay the
cash flows fo one or more recipients in an
agreement which met certain conditions. When
the Aszsociation transfers financial assets, the
Aszsociation evaluates the exfent to which the
Association retains the nsks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
({Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

2. INFORMASI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANS| MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

d. Instrumen Keuangan (lanjutan)
(1) Aset Keuangan (lanjutan)
Penurunan Nilai Aset Keuangan

Pada setiap periode pelaporan, Perkumpulan
menilai apakah risike kredit dari instrumen
keuangan telah meningkat secara signifikan
sejak pengakuan awal. Ketika melakukan
penilaian, Perkumpulan menggunakan

perubahan atas risiko gagal bayar yang terjadi
sepanjang perkiraan usia instrumen kKeuangan
daripada perubahan atas jumlah kerugian
kredit ekspaktasian.

Dalam melakukan penilaian, Perkumpulan
membandingkan antara risiko gagal bayar
yang terjadi atas instrumen keuangan pada
saat periode pelaporan dengan risiko gagal
bayar yang terjadi atas instrumen keuangan
pada saat pengakuan awal dan
mempertimbangkan kewajaran serta
ketersediaan informasi, yang tersedia tanpa
biaya atau usaha pada saat tanggal palaparan
terkait dengan kejadian masa lalu, kondisi
terkini dan perkiraan atas kondisi ekonomi di
masa depan, yang mengindikasikan kenaikan
risiko kredit sejak pengakuan awal.

Perkumpulan menerapkan metoda yang
disederhanakan untuk mengukur kerugian
kredit ekspektasian tersebut terhadap piutang
royalti tanpa komponen pendanaan vyang
signifikan.

(2) Liabilitas Keuangan

Perusahaan  mengklasifikasikan  liabilitas
keuangannya sebagai: (i) liabilitas keuangan
divkur pada FYTPL atau (ii) liabilitas keuangan
diukur pada biaya perolehan diamortisasi.

Perkumpulan menentukan klasifikasi liabilitas
pada saat pengakuan awal.

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024, liabilitas
keuangan Perkumpulan terdin dan utang
distribusi, utang lain-lain, akrual, dan liabiltas
SEWA.

Perkumpulan mengklasifikasikan liabilitas
keuvangannya sebagai liabiltas keuangan
yang diukur pada biaya perolehan
diamortisasi.

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

{Exprassed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(continued)

d. Financial Instruments {continued)

(1) Financial Assets (continued)

{2)

Impairment of Financial Assets

At each reporting period, the Associahion
azsesses whether the credit rish on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since
initial  recognition.  When making the
assessment, the Associalion used the change
in the risk of a default occuring over the
expected life of the financial instrument instead
of the change in the amount of expected credit
losses.

Te make that assessmeni, the Associalion
compared the risk of a default occuring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting perod
with the risk of a defaull occuring on the
financial instrument as al the date of initial
recognition and consider reasonable and
supportable information, that s available
without undue cost or effort at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, that is
indicative of significant increases in credi nsk
since initial recognition.

The Association applied a simplified approach
fo measure such expected credit loss for royalty
receivables  without significant  financing

component.

Financial Liabilities

The Company classifies ifs financial liabiities
as: (i) financial labiittes af FVTPL or
(i) financial Nabiliies carried af amortized cost.

The Associalion determines the classification of
itg labilities at initial recognition.

Az of December 31, 2024, the Associalion’s
financial Wabilities consist of distnbulion
payables, other payables, accruals, and lease
liabilitias.

The Associafion’s classifies ifs financial
liabilities as Ffnancial liabilities carmied al
amortized cost,
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
{Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stafed)

2. INFORMASI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

d. Instrumen Keuangan (lanjutan)
(2) Liabilitas Keuangan (lanjutan)

Pada saat pengakuan awal, liabilitas
keuangan yang diakui pada biaya perclehan
diamortisasi diukur pada nilai wajar ditambah
biaya transaksi. Setelah pengakuan awal,
Perkumpulan  mengukur  seluruh  liabilitas
keuangan vyang diukur dengan biaya
perclehan diamortisasi dengan menggunakan
metode suku bunga efektif. Keuntungan dan
kerugian diakui dalam laba rugi pada saat
liabilitas tersebut dihentkan pengakuannya
serta melalui proses amortisasi.

Liabilitas keuangan dihentikan pengakuannya
jika liabiltas yang ditetapkan dalam kontrak
dihentikan atau dibatalkan atau kadaluarsa.

Ketika liabilitas keuangan saat ini digantikan
dengan liabilitas yang lain dengan persyaratan
yang berbeda secara substansial, atau
modifikasi atas ketentuan liabilitas keuvangan
yang saat ini ada secara substansial, maka
pertukaran  atau  modifikasi | tersebut
diperlakukan sebagai penghentian pangakuan
liabilitas awal dan pengakuan liabilitas baru,
dan perbedaan nilai tercatat masing-masing
diakui dalam laporan penghasilan
komprehensif lain,

{3) Saling Hapus Instrumen Keuangan

Aset dan liabilitas keuangan dapat saling
hapus dan nilai bersihnya disajikan dalam
laporan posisi keuangan jika, dan hanya jika,
Perkumpulan memiliki hak yang berkekuatan
hukum untuk melakukan saling hapus atas
jumilah yang telah diakui tersebut dan terdapat
niat untuk menyelesaikan secara neto, atau
untuk merealisasikan aset dan menyelesaikan
liabilitas secara simultan.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
{continued)

d. Financial Instruments (continued)

{2) Financial Liabilities (continued)

Financial liabilities carmed at amortized cost are
initially recognized at fair value plus transaction
costs. Affer initial recognifion, the Associalion’s
measures all financial liabilities at amortized cost
using effective inferest rate method. Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognized as well as through the
amartizafion process.

{3)

Financial abiliies are derecogmnized when the
coniractual obligation is terminafed or canceled
or expires.

When the cumrent financial labilities are
replaced by other liabilities with substantially
differant ferms or the terms of existing financial
labiliies are substantially modified, the
exchange or modification is lreated as the
derecognition of the original Nabilities and
recognition of new liabilities, and the difference
in the respective camying amounts are
recognized in the sfatement of other
comprehensive income.

Offsetting Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are sef-off and
the net amount is preserted in the statement of
financial position when, and only when, the
Association's has the legal right to set off the
amounits and infends either lo selfle on a net
basiz or realize the assefs and seftle the
labilities simultaneously.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
{Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecual dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

{Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise sfated)

2. INFORMASI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL
{lanjutan)

d. Instrumen Keuangan (lanjutan)

{4) Pengukuran Milai Wajar

Milai wajar adalah harga yang akan diterima untuk
menjual suatu aset atau harga yang akan dibayar
untuk mengalinkan suatu liabilitas dalam transaksi
teratur antara pelaku pasar pada tanggal
pengukuran.

Milai wajar aset dan liabillitas keuangan diestimasi
untuk keperluan pengakuan dan pengukuran atau
untuk keperluan pengungkapan.

Milai wajar dikategorkan dalam level yang
berbeda dalam swatu  hirarki  nilai  wajar
berdasarkan pada apakah input suatu pengukuran
dapat diobservasi dan signifikansi input terhadap
keseluruhan pengukuran nilai wajar:

- Harga kuctasian (tanpa penyesuaian) di
pasar akiif untuk aset atau liabilitas yang
identik yang dapat diakses pada tanggal
pengukuran (Level 1)

- Input selain harga kuotasian yang termasuk
dalam Level 1 yang dapat diobservasi untuk
aset atau liabilitas, baik secara langsung
maupun tidak langsung (Level 2)

- Input yang tidak dapat dicbservasi untuk asat
atau liabilitas (Level 3)

Dalam mengukur nilai wajar aset atau liabilitas,
Perkumpulan sebisa mungkin menggunakan data
pasar yang dapat diobservasi. Apabila nilai wajar
aset atau liabilitas tidak dapat diobservasi secara
langsung, Perkumpulan menggunakan teknik
penilaian yang sesuai dengan keadaannya dan
memaksimalkan penggunaan input yang dapat
diobservasi yang relevan dan meminimalkan

penggunaan input yang tidak dapat dichservasi.

Perpindahan antara level hirarki wajar diakui oleh
Perkumpulan pada akhir pericde pelaporan
dimana perpindahan teradi.

e. Kas dan Setara Kas

Kas dan Setara Kas terdini dari uang tunai dan
deposite vyang dipegang oleh bendahara
Perkumpulan dan uwang vang tersimpan dalam
beberapa rekening bank yang tidak dijaminkan serta
tidak dibatasi penggunaannya.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(continwed)

d. Financial Instruments (continued)

{4) Fair Value Measurement

Fairvalue is the price that would be received to sell
an assef or paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market parficipants alf the
measurement dafe.

The fair value of financial assels and financial
liabilities must be estimaled for recognilion amd
measurament or for disclosure purposes.

Fair values are categonzed into different levels in
a fair value hierarchy based on the degree fo which
the inputs to the measurement are observable and
the significance of the inputs fo the overall fair
value measurement:

=  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assels or habilties that can be
accessed at the measurement date (Level 1)

- Inputs other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable for the azsefs or
liabilities, either directly or indirectly (Level 2)

- Unobservable inputs for the assels or
liabilities (Lewvel 3)

When measuring the fair value of an assef or a
liability, The Associalion uses markel observable
data to the extent possible. If the fair value of an
asset or a lability is not directly observable, The
Associtation wses valuation fechniques that
appropriate in the circumstances and maximizes
the wse of relevant observable inputs and
minimizes the use of unobservable inpuls.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
are recognized by The Associalion at the end of the
reporting penod duning which the change occurred.

. Cash and Cash Equivalenis

Cash and Cash Eguivalent consists of cash and
time deposit held by the Association's treasurer and
cash in several bank accounis which are nof
collaferalized and are not resiricled.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHAMNA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalarm Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

2. INFORMASI KEEBIJAKAN AKUNTAMS! MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

f.

h.

Piutang Royalti

Piutang royalti disajikan dalam jumlah gross,
penyisihan pivtang tidak tertagih  diestimasi
berdasarkan review atas kolektibilitas saldo piutang.
Piutang dihapuskan pada saat piutang tersebut
dipastikan tidak akan tertagih.

Eiaya dibayar di muka

Biaya dibayar di muka diamortisasi selama masa
manfaat masing-masing biaya dengan
menggunakan metode garis lurus (straight-line
method).

Aset Tetap

Aset tetap pada awalnya diakui sebesar biaya
perclenan yang meliputi harga perolehannya dan
setiap biaya vang dapat diatribusikan langsung
untuk membawa aset ke kondisi dan lokasi yang
diinginkan agar aset siap digunakan sesuai intensi
manajemen.

Apabila relevan, biaya perclehan juga dapat
mencakup estimasi awal biaya pembongkaran dan
pemindahan aset tetap dan restorasi lokasi aset
tetap, kewajiban tersebut timbul ketika aset tetap
dipercleh atau sebagai konsekuensi penggunaan
aset tetap selama periode tertentu untuk tujuan
selain untuk memproduksi persediaan salama
periode tersebut.

Setelah pengakuan awal, aset tetap kecuali tanah
dinyatakan sebesar biaya perolehan dikurangi
akumulasi  penyusutan dan  akumulasi  rugi
penurunan nilai,

Penyusutan aset tetap dimulai pada saat aset
tersebut siap untuk digunakan sesuai maksud
penggunaannya dan dihitung dengan
menggunakan metode garis lurus berdasarkan
estimasi masa manfaat ekonomis aset sebagai
barikut:

Tahun/Years

Peralatan kantor
Perangkat lunak komputer
Perabotan

Kendaraan

Milai  residu, wumur manfaat, serta metode
penyusutan ditelaah setiap akhir tabhun dan
dilakukan penyesuaian jika diperlukan.

F N N

FERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(continuwed)

f. Royalty Receivables

Royailty receivables are stated at gross amount, and
allowance for bad debls is estimated based on a
review of the collectability of the receivable balance.
Receivables are written off when it is certain that the
receivables are uncollectible.

. Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses are amortized over their useful
lives using the straight-line method.,

. Fixed Assels

Fixved assets are initially recognized at casf, which
comprizes its purchase price and any cost directly
attributable in bringing the assels fo the condition
and location necessary for it fo be capable of
operating in the manner intended by the

management.

When applicable, the cost may also comprize the
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it
is located. The obligalion arizes either when the
itemn is acquired or as a consequence of having
used the item during a particular period for purposes
other than to produce inventories during that period.

After initial recognition, fixed assets except land are
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses,

An item of fived assets is derecogmized upon
Depreciation of fived assels starls when it is
available for its infended use and computed by
using straight-line method based on the esfiimated
useful ives of assets as follows:

Office equipment
Computer software
Furniture

Vehicles

The fixed assel's residual value, useful life and
depreciation method are reviewed and adjusted if
appropriate at each financial year end.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAMN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

FERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. INFORMASI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTAME]I MATERIAL
(lanjutan)

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(eantinued)

I. Imbalan Kerja i. Employee Benefits

Perkumpulan diharuskan menyediakan imbalan
pensiun minimum vyang diatur dalam Undang-
Undang ("UU") Ne. 8/2023, Peraturan Pemerintah
Me. 352021 ("PP 35/20217) dan Peraturan
Perkumpulan, yang merupakan kewajiban imbalan
kerja.

Berdasarkan PSAK Mo, 219, "Imbalan Pascakerja”,
mengharuskan beban imbalan pascakera yang
ditentukan berdasarkan Undang-Undang ("UU")
Mo, 62023, untuk dihitung menggunakan metode
penilaian “Frojeksi Kredit Unit”. Keuntungan atau
kerugian perhitungan aktuaria diakui secara
langsung pada pendapatan komprehensif lain.

Pengakuan Pendapatan dan Beban
Pendapatan dar kontrak dengan pelanggan

Perusahaan mengakui pendapatan sesuai dengan
PSAK 115, “Pendapatan dar Kontrak dengan
Pelanggan”, dengan melakukan analisa transaksi
melalsi  metode lima langkah pengakuan
pendapatan sebagai berikut:

1) Mengidentifikasi kontrak dengan pelanggan,
dimana Perkumpulan mencatat kontrak
dengan pelanggan hanya jika seluruh kriteria
berikut terpenuhi:

- Keontrak telah disetujui oleh para pihak
dalam kontrak;

-  Perkumpulan dapat mengidentifikasi hak
dari para pihak dan jangka wakiu
pembayaran atas barang yang akan
dialihkan;

- Kontrak memiliki substansi komersial,

- Kemungkinan besar Perkumpulan akan
menerima imbalan atas barang vyang
dialihkan.

2} Mengidentifikasi kewajiban  pelaksanaan
dalam kentrak;
3)  Menentukan harga transaksi;

4) Mengalokasikan harga transaksi pada setiap
kewajiban pelaksanaan;

5) Mengakui pendapatan ketika kewajiban
pelaksanaan telah dipenuhi (pada suatu waktu
tertentu atau sepanjang waktu).

The Permumpulan's is required lo provide a
minimum pension benefit as stipulated in the
Indonesian  Law  No.62023 Govarmmeant
Regulation No. 352021 (PP 3520217 and
Association’'s Regulation, which represents an
underying defined benefits obligation.

Baszed on FPSAK No. 218, “Employee benefils”,
requires cost of post-employment benefits based
on the Law No.6/2023 to be determined using the
‘Projected Uit Credit” valuation methed. Actuanal
gains or losses are recognized directly throwgh
other comprehensive incoms,

Revenuwes and Expenses Recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance
with PSAK 115 “"Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”, by performing lransaction analysis
through the five steps of income recognition mode!
as follows:

1) Identify contracts with a cusfomer, whereby the
Association records contracts with customers
anly if the following criterias are met:

- The contract has been agreed by the parties
involved in the contract:

= The Association can identify the rights of the
parties involved and the term of payment for
the goods to be transferred;

- The contract has commercial substance;
- It is probable that the Association will
receive benefits for the goods fransferrad.

2} ldentify the performance obligations in the
contract;

3) Deftermine the transaction price;

4) Allocate fhe fransaction price fo  each
performance obligation;

5) Recognize revenus when performance
obligation is satisfied (at a point in ime or
aver time).
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAMN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Dizajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

FERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Exprassed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2. INFORMAZI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

(lanjutan) (continuwed)
j- Pengakuan Pendapatan dan Beban {lanjutan) j. Revenues and Expenses  Recognition
(continued)

Kewajiban pelaksanaan dapat dipenuhi pada suaiu
titik waktu (biasanya untuk janji untuk mentransfer
barang kepada pelanggan); atau dari waktu ke
waktu (biasanya untuk janji untuk mentransfer jasa

kepada pelanggan).

Pendapatan terdiri dar biaya jasa distribusi media
berdasarkan jumlah brute yang ditagihkan kepada
pelanggan dikurangi dengan jumlah yang terutang
kepada studio atau produser konten berdasarkan
pernanjian distribusi.

Pearkumpulan mengakui pendapatan dari distribusi
media ketika empat krteria dasar berikut ini
terpenuhi;

(a) Terdapat bukti yang meyakinkan mengenai
adanya perjanjian,

() Pengiriman telah terjadi atau jasa telah
diberikan;

(e) Harga yang diberikan penjual kepada pembeli
telah ditetapkan atau dapat ditentukan; dan

(d) Kolektibilitas dapat dipastikan secara wajar.

Biaya produk musik diakui pada saat terjadinya, dan
dibebankan pada usaha pada saat produk musik
tersebut dijual dan diserahkan kepada distnbutor.

Beban diakui pada saat terfjadinya (dasar akrual).

Sewa

Pada permulaan kontrak, Perkumpulan menilai
apakah kontrak merupakan, atau mengandung,
sawa. Suatu kontrak merupakan atau mengandung
sewa jika kontrak tersebut memberikan hak untuk
mengendalikan penggunaan aset identifikasian
selama suaty jangka wakiu untuk dipertukarkan
dengan imbalan.

Untuk menilai apakah kontrak memberkan hak
untuk mengendalikan penggunaan aset
identifikasian, Perkumpulan akan menilai apakah:

1) Perkumpulan memiliki hak untuk
mendapatkan secara substansial seluruh
manfaat ekonomis dar penggunaan aset
identifikasian; dan

2) Perkumpulan memiliki hak untuk mengarahkan
penggunaan aset identifikasian.

A performance obligation may be satisfied at a point
in time (typically for promises o transfer goods to a
customer);, or overtime (typically for promises fo
fransfer services to a customer).

Revenue consists of media distnibution service fees
based on the gross amounts billed to customer less
the amounis owed fo the studio or content
producers under the distnbution agreements.

The Association recognizes revenus from the

distribution of media when the following four basic

cnteria are mel:

(a) Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists,

(b} Delivery has occurred or services rendered;

{c) The seller's price fo the buyer is fived or
determinable; amnd

(d) Collectability is reasonably assured.

Costs of music products are accred when incurred
and charged to cperations when the music products
are sold and delivered to distnbutors.

Expenses are recognized when they are incurred
(accrual basis).

. Lease

At the inceplion of a contract, the Associafion
assesses whether the confract is, or conlains, a
lease. A confract is or conlfains a lease if the
contract conveys the right fo control the use of an
identified assets for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

To assess whether a contract conveys the right to
cornfrol the wse of an identified assel, the

Aszsociation's will agsess whether:

1) The Association’s has the right fo oblain
substantially all the economic benefits from the
use of the asset throughout the perod of use;
and

2) The Associafion’s has the right to direct the use
of the asset.
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2. INFORMASI KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANSI MATERIAL
{lanjutan)

K.

Sewa (lanjutan)

Pada tanggal permmulaan sewa, Perkumpulan
mengakul aset hak-guna dan liabilitas sewa. Aset
hak-guna pada saat di awal, diukur pada biaya
perclehan, dimana meliputi:

1) Jumlah pengukuran awal liabiltas sewa;

2) Pembayaran sewa yang dilakukan pada atau
sebelum tanggal permulaan, dikurangi dengan
insantif sewa;

3) Biaya langsung awal yang dikeluarkan; dan

Estimasi biaya yang akan dikeluarkan untuk
membengkar dan memindahkan aset pendasar atau
untuk merestorasi aset pendasar ke kondisi yang
disyaratkan oleh syarat dan ketentuan sewa.

Perkumpulan menyusutkan aset hak-guna dan
tanggal permulaan hingga tanggal yang lebih awal
antara akhir umur manfaat aset hak-guna atau akhir
masa sewa.

Aset dan liabilitas yang timbul dari perjanjian sewa
pada awalnya diukur pada nilai kini pambayaran
sewa yang belum dibayar pada tanggal permulaan,
didiskontokan dengan menggunakan suku bunga
implisit dalam sewa atau, jika suku bunga tersebut
tidak dapat ditentukan, maka menggunakan suku
bunga pinjaman incremental,

Pada umumnya, Perkumpulan menggunakan suku
bunga pinjaman incremental sebagai tingkat bunga
diskonto.

Pembayaran sewa yang termasuk dalam
pengukuran lisbilitas sewa meliputi pembayaran
berikut ini:

1) Pembayaran tetap secara substansi dikurangi
dengan piutang insentif sewa;

2) Pembayaran penalti karena penghentian awal
sewa kecuali jika Perkumpulan cukup pasti
untuk tidak menghentikan lebih awal.

Pembayaran sewa dialokasikan menjadi bagian
pokok dan biaya keuangan. Biaya keuangan
dibebankan pada laba rugi selama periode sewa
sehingga menghasilkan tingkat suku bunga periodik
yang konstan atas saldo liabiltas untuk setiap
peariode.

Perkumpulan menyajikan aset hak-guna sebagai
bagian dari “Aset Tetap” di dalam laporan posisi
keuangan.

2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION
(continued)

k. Lease (continued)

At the commencement dafe of the lease, the
Association’'s recognizes a night-of-use asset and a
lease liability. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured at cosf, which comprises:

1) The initial amount of the lease liability;
2) Lease payment made at or before the
commencement dale, less any lease incentive;

3) Initial direct cost incurred; and

An estimate of costs fo dismantle and remove the
underlying asset fo the condiion required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

The Association’s depreciates the nght-of-use assetf
from the commencement dafe fo the earfier of the
end of the useful life of the right-of-use assef or the
end of the lease fterm.

Assets and liabilities ansing from lease
arrangements are initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if thal rate cannot be
readily determined, using incremental borrowing
rate.

Generally, the Association's uses is incremental
borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability comprize the following:

1) The fixed payments. including in-substance
fivred payment less any lease incenfive
receivable;

2] Penalty payments for early termination of a
lease unless the Association's iz reasonably
cerfain not to ferminale eary.

Each lease payment is allocated between f(he
hability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged fo profit or loss over the lease period 50 as
to produce a constant penodic rate of inferest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

The Association's presents nght-of-use assets as
part of “Fixed Assels” in the statement of financial
position.
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2. INFORMAS| KEBIJAKAN AKUNTANS|I MATERIAL 2. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION

{lanjutan)
k. Sewa (lanjutan)

ek dan sewa vyang aset

Sewa jangka

RENS35

Perkumpulan memutuskan untuk tidak mengakui
aset hak-guna dan liabilitas sewa untuk sewa jangka
pendek yang memiliki masa sewa 12 bulan atau
kurang dan sewa yang aset pendasarnya bernilai
rendah. Perkumpulan mengakui pembayaran sewa
atas sewa tersebut sebagai beban dengan dasar
garis lurus selama masa sewa.

|.  Perpajakan

Perkumpulan mengakui kewajiban atas seluruh
pajak penghasilan pericde berjalan dan periode
sebelumnya yang belum dibayar. Jika jumlah yang
telah dibayar untuk periode berjalan dan periode
sebelumnya melebihi jumlah yang terutang untuk
pericde tersebut, maka Perkumpulan mengakui
kelebihan pembayaran tersebut sebagai aset
Beban pajak Kkini (periode beralan) ditentukan
berdasarkan kenaikan aset bersih untuk peniode
tahun bersangkutan yang dihitung sesuai dengan
tarif pajak berlaku.

3. PENGGUNAAN PERTIMBANGAMN, ESTIMASI DAN

ASUMEI

Penyusunan laporan keuangan sesuai dengan Standar
Akuntansi Keuangan di Indonesia mewajibkan
manajemen untuk membuat pertimbangan, estimasi
dan asumsi yang mempengaruhi jumlah-jumlah yang
dilaporkan dalam laporan keuangan. Sehubungan
dengan adanya ketidakpastian yang melekat dalam
membuat estimasi, hasil sebenamya yang dilaporkan di
masa mendatang dapat berbeda dengan jumlah
estimasi yang dibuat.

Perkumpulan mendasarkan asumsi dan estimasi pada
parametar yang tersedia pada saat laporan keuangan
disusun. Asumsi dan situasi mengenai perkembangan
masa depan, mungkin berubah akibat perubahan pasar
atau situasi di luar kendali Perkumpulan. Perubahan
tersebut dicerminkan dalam asumsi terkait pada saat
terjadinya.

Pertimbangan, estimasi dan asumsi berikut ini dibuat
oleh manajemen dalam rangka penerapan kebijakan
akuntansi Perusahaan yang memiliki pengaruh paling
signifikan atas jumlah yang diakui dalam laporan
keuangan:

{continued)
k. Lease jcontinued)

Short-ferm leases and low-value i $

The Association’s has elected not fo recognize
night-of-use assefs and lease liabilities for shori-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
lezs and leases of low-value assefs. The
Association's recognizes the lease payments
associated with these leases as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease ferm.

I. Taxation

The Association recognizes a liability for all unpaid
current and prior period income taxes. If the amount
paid for the current and prior periods exceeds the
amount due for those penods, the Association
recognizes the overpayment as an assel The
current tax expense (current period) is determined
based on the increase in net assets for the period
calculated based on the applicable tax rate.

3. USE OF JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements, in conformity
with Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards,
requires management to make judgements, estimations
and assumptions that affect amounis reporied in the
financial stalements. Due fo the inherent uncertainty in
making estimates, actual results reporfed in fufure
periods may differ from those esfimates.

The Association based its assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions
about future developmenis may change due to market
changes or circumstances ansing beyond the control of
the Association. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions as they ocour.

The following judgements, estimates and assumplions
made by management in the process of applying the
Company's accounting policies are those most likely fo
have significant effects on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements:
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3

PENGGUNAAN PERTIMBANGAN, ESTIMAS! DAN
ASUMSI (lanjutan)

Milal Wajar Aset dan Liabilitas Keuangan

Perkumpulan menetapkan klasifikasi aset dan liabilitas
tertentu sebagai aset keuangan dan liabilitas keuangan
dengan mempertimbangkan apakah definisi yang
divraikan dalam PSAK No. 109 telah terpenuhi, Qleh
karena itu, aset keuangan dan liabilitas keuangan diakui
sesuai dengan kebijakan akuntansi Perkumpulan
seperti diungkapkan pada Catatan 2.

Biaya Pensiun dan Imbalan Kerja

Penantuan kewajiban dan biaya Perkumpulan untuk
liabilitas pensiun dan imbalan kerja tergantung pada
pemilihan asumsi tertentu yang digunakan oleh aktuaris
indepandan dalam menghitung jumlah tersabut.
Asumsi-asumsi tersebut antara lain, tingkat diskonto,
tingkat kenaikan gaji tahunan, tingkat pengunduran din,
tingkat kecacatan, usia pensiun dan tingkat kematian.
Sementara  Perkumpulan  berkeyakinan bahwa
asumsinya wajar dan tepat, perbedaan signifikan dalam
hasil aktual Perkumpulan atau perubahan signifikan
dalam asumsi Perkumpulan dapat mempengaruhi
secara material liabiltas diestimasi untuk pensiun dan
imbalan kerja dan beban imbalan kerja bersih.

Taksiran Masa Manfaat Ekonomis Aset Tetap

Biaya perolehan aset tetap disusutkan dan diamortisasi
dengan menggunakan metode garis lurus berdasarkan
taksiran masa manfaat ekonomisnya., Manajemen
mengestimasi masa manfaat ekonomis aset tetap
selama 4 tahun. Ini adalah umur secara umum
diharapkan dalam industi dimana Perkumpulan
menjalankan bisnisnya. FPerubahan tingkat pemakaian
dan perkembangan teknologi dapat mempengaruhi
masa manfaat ekonomis dan nilai sisa aset, dan
karenanya biaya penyusutan dan amortisasi masa
depan mungkin direvisi.

Rl
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3. USE OF JUDGEMENTS,

ESTIMATES AND
ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Fair Values of Financial Assets and Liabilitles

The Associafion’s determines the classification of certain
assets and liabilities as financial assetz and financial
liabilities by considering whether the definitions outlined
in PSAK No, 109 are mel. Accordingly, financial assels
and financial iabilities are recognized in accordance with
the Associalion’s accounting policies as disclosed in
Note 2.

Pension Cost and Employee Benefits

The determination of the Association’s obligations and
cost for pension and employes benefils labilities iz
dependent on its selection of cerfain assumphions used
by the independent actuary in calculating such amounts.
These assumptions include among others, discount
rates, annual salary increase rafe, employee resignation
rate, disability rafe, retirement age and mortality rale.
While the Association’s believes that its assumplions are
reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the
Associalion’s actual results or significant changes in the
Association’s assumptions may matenally affect its
esfimated liabilities for pension and employee benefits
and ne! employee benefif expense.

Estimared Useful Lives of Fixed Assels

The costs of fived assels are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives, Managament
eslimates the useful ives of these fixed assets o be 4
years. These are common life expectancies applied in
the industries in which the Association’s conducts itz
business. Changes in the expected level of usage and

technological development could impact on the
economic useful lives and the residual values of these

assels, and therefore future depreciation charges could
be revised.
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3. PENGGUNAAN PERTIMBANGAN, ESTIMASI DAN
ASUMSI (lanjutan)

Sewa

Penentuan apakah suatu perjanjian mengandung unsur
sewa membutuhkan pertimbangan yang cemat untuk
menilai apakah perjanjian tersebut memberikan hak
untuk mendapatkan secara substansial selurubh
manfaat ekonomis dar penggunaan aset identifikasian
dan hak untuk mengarahkan penggunaan aset
identifikasian, bahkan jika hak tersebut tidak dijabarkan
secara eksplisit di perjanjian.

Karena Perkumpulan tidak dapat dengan mudah
menentukan suku bunga implist, manajemen
menggunakan suku bunga pinjaman ncremental
Perkumpulan sebagai tingkat diskonto. Ada beberapa
faktor yang perlu dipertimbangkan dalam menentukan
suku bunga pinjaman incremenfal, yang banyak di
antaranya memerlukan pertimbangan untuk dapat
secara andal mengukur penyesuaian yang diperukan
untuk sampai pada tingkat diskonto akhir.

Dalam menentukan suku bunga pinjaman incremental,
Perkumpulan mempertimbangkan faktor-faktor utama
berikut: risiko kredit korporat Perkumpulan, jangka
wakiu sewa, jangka wakiu pembayaran sewa,
lingkungan ekonomi dan waktu di mana sewa
dimasukkan.

Dalam menentukan jangka waktu sewa, Perkumpulan
mempertimbangkan semua fakta dan keadaan yang
menimbulkan insentif ekonomi untuk menggunakan
opsi perpanjangan, atau tideak menggunakan opsi
penghentian. Opsi parpanjangan (atau periode setelah
opsi penghentian kontrak kerja) hanya termasuk dalam
jangka waktu sewa jika cukup pasti akan diperpanjang
(atau tidak dihentikan).

Untuk sewa gudang dan kantor, berikut merupakan
faktor-faktor yang pada umumnya paling relevan:

(1) Jika terdapat penalti yang signifikan untuk
mengakhin  (atau tidak  memperpanjang),
Perkumpulan biasanya cukup pasti  untuk
memperpanjang (atau tidak mengakhiri).

(2) Jika prasarana diperkirakan mempunyai nilai sisa
yang signifikan, Perkumpulan biasanya cukup pasti
untuk memperpanjang (atau tidak mengakhiri).

(3) Jika tidak, Perkumpulan mempertimbangkan faktor
lain termasuk jangka waktu sewa historis dan biaya
dan gangguan bisnis yang timbul untuk
menggantikan aset sewa tersebut.

3. USE OF JUDGEMENTS, ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS [continued)
Leases

Determining whether an arrangement is or contains a
lease requires careful judgement fo assess whether the
arrangement conveys a nght fo obtain subsfantially all
the economic benefits from use of the asset throughout
the period of use and night to direct the use of the asset,
even if the nght is not explicitly specified in the
arrangement.

Since the Associalion could not readily determine the
implicit rate, management uses the Association's
incremental borrowing rate as a discount rate. There are
number factors to consider in determining an incremental
borrowing rate, many of which need judgement in order
to be able to reliably quantify any necessary adjustments
to arrive at the final discount rate.

In determining incremental borrowing rate, the
Association’s considers the following main factors: the
Association’s corporate credit risk, the lease termn, the
leasze payment term, the economic environment and the
time at which the lease iz entered info.

In determining the lease term, management considers all
factz and circumstances that creafe an economic
incentive to exercise an exfension oplion, or not exercise
a termination option. Extension options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term if
the lease is reascnably certain fo be extended f(or not
terminated).

For lease of warehouse and office, the following factors
are normally the most relevant:

(1) If there are significant penalfies to terminate (or not
extend), the Associafion’s is typically reasonably
certain fo extend {or not ferminale).

(2) If any leasehold improvements are expected fo have
a significant remaining value, the Association's is
typically reasonably certain fo extend (or not
terminate).

{3) Otherwise, the Association's considers other faclors
including historical lease durafions and the costs and
business disruplion required to replace the leased
assef.
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4. KAS DAN SETARA KAS

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

2023
572.200 Cash - Rupiah
Banks
14.192.270.494 Rupiah
19.442 572 870 Us Deollar
33.634.843.364 Sub-toral
114.783.835.700 Time deposits - Rupiak

148.419.251.264

4 50% - 5,50%

Toral

Interest rates of
time deposits — Rupiah

5. ROYALTY RECEIVABLES

2024
Kas - Rupiah 2.226.400
Bank
Rupiah T6.724.738.141
LS Dallar 12.961.733.126
Sub-jumlah 80.686.472.267
Depostio berjangka — Rupiah £4.300.000.000
Jumlah 173.088.698.667
Tingkat bunga
deposito berjangka — Rupiah 3,00%-6,25%
. PIUTANG ROYALTI
2024
Live event 6.677.982.115
Digital 6.377.992.359
Karacke 3.280.829.864
Umurm 2.157.013.027
Siaran 1.246.955.812
Luar negeri 20.575.773
Lain-lain T7.406.349
Jumlah 19.847.755.299

2023
1.403.704.624 Live avent
425930651 Digital
4,885.305.616 Karaoke
6.382.510.155 Genoral
3.300.576.407 Broadeast
- Cverseas
- Cthers
16.408.027.453 Total

Berdasarkan hasil penelsahan terhadap adanya

Based on the results of review for impairment of royalty

penurunan nilai piutang rovalti pada tanggal pelaporan,
manajemen Perkumpulan berkeyakinan bahwa seluruh
piutang dapat tertagih., sehingga tidak ada kerugian
penurunan nilai atas piutang royalti yang harus dicatat.

receivables at the reporting date, the Association’s
management believes that the entire receivables are
collectible and hence, no impairment losses on royally
receivables should be recorded.

. BIAYA DIBEAYAR DI MUKA DAN UANG MUKA

6. PREPAID EXPENSES AND ADVANCES

2024
Sewa kantor 337.396.088
Sewa perangkat lunak kemputer 192.805.421
Uang muka urtuk karyawan 3.546.000
Lain-lain 24 385 529
Jumlah 558.113.038

2023
88.881.780 Office rent
127.520.183 Software rent
24 905 867 Advance to emplayes
22.481.968 Others
263.799.808 Taral
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7. ASET TETAP 7. FIXED ASSETS
2024
Saldo awall Penambahan/ Pengurangan/ Salde akhir

Beginning balance Adecitions Deductions Ending balance
Biaya Perolshan
Peralatan kantor 1517208 555 122 GBB &LT 1.629.987 112 Office equipment
Perangkat lunak komputer SEF 181,21 66,108 B52 653 200073 Comperer soffwane
Perabotan 153 148 274 153.148.274 Furniture
Kendaraan 16 600 238 16,600 36 Velmoles
Jumiah 2.2T4. 328286 188.607.409 2483.026.896 Total
Akumulasi Penyusutan Accumulated Depreciation
Peralatan kanfor TR0 300 227 BaY 1. 119058 737 Cifece exquaprnent
Perangkat lunak komputer A5l 334 H00 A4 141,381 540 465.581 Compurer soffware
Perabotan 153 148274 153,148,274 Furnifure
Kendaraan 16,600 235 16.600.236 Vahicles
Jumlah 1.75:4.901.080 434 369268 1.829.270.338 Total
Hilal Buku BTE.A2T 206 633. 755387 Book Value

2003
Salda awall Penambahani Pengurangan/ Salda akhir

Beginning balance Additions Deductions Ending balance 2023
Biaya Perclahan Acquisition Cost
Peralatan kantor 1002 602 724 424,505 631 1.517.308.555 Ot equaprnent
Feranghkat lunak komputer A QRT N 101,184,000 SEF. 18121 Computer soffware
Perabatan 153148274 153,148,214 Furrufure
Kendaraan 16,600 38 16.600 236 Velmoles
Jumiah 1.748.628.455 525686801 2.374.328.286 Total
Akumulasi Penyusutan Accumulated Depreciation
Peralatan kantor 477 425,238 251403002 728.828.370 Office equipment
Perangkat lunak komputer 405 AT M 103236979 496.324 200 Computer software
Perabotan 153 148274 153.148274 Furniture
Kendaraan 16,600,236 16.600.2306 Vahiches
Jumiah 1133, 161.069 261.T40.011 1.394.901.080 Total
Hilai Buku G16.467.286 879.427.206 Baook Value

Beban penyusutan sebesar

Rp434.369.258 dan

Depreciation expenses amounied fo Rp4d34 368 258 and

Rp261.740.011 masing-masing pada tahun 2024 dan
2023 dicatat pada akun beban umum dan administrasi
(Catatan 16).

Berdasarkan penelaahan manajemen, tidak terdapat
kondisi-kondisi  atau perubahan keadaan vyang
mengindikasikan adanya penurunan nilai aset tetap
pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024.

Rp261.740.011 in 2024 and 2023 are recorded in the
general and administrative expenses accounts (Note 16).

Based on management's review, there are no conditions
or changes in circumstances that indicate an impaiment
of fixed assels as of December 31, 2024.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDOMNESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN
Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut

{Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwize stated)

8. ASET HAK GUNA

& RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET

2024
Saldo awall Penambahan/ Pengurangan/ Saldo akhir!
Beginning balance Additions Deductions Ending balance
Gedung kantor 2523133475 1. 3100662057 3.833.705.532 Office Buiding
Jumlah 2523133475 1.310.882.057 - 3.833.795.532 Todal
Gedung kantor 611,252 333 6ra. 473,79 1,290 526 64 CAfhce Buakding
Jumlah B11.352.833 B79.473.7T91 - 1.290.B26.624 Todal
Hilal Tercatat 1.811.780.642 2.542 568908 Carrying Amount
2023
Saldo awall Panambahan/ Pengurangan/ Saldo akhir!
Beginning balance Additions Deductions Ending balance
Biaya Perclshan Acguisifion Costs
Geeclung kanlor 2244191 385 278 942090 2523133475 Cfffces Pluaclingg
Jumiah 2.344.191.385 278.842.090 ] 2523133475 Togal
Akumulasi Pemyusutan Accumulated Depreciation
Gechung kanlor 343 EE 435 229 064 398 611,352 BE3 Cffrces Bluiciimg
Jumlah 382.208.435 229,064,358 - 611.352.833 Total
Nilai Tercatat 1.911.780.642 Carrying Amount

1.861.902.950

Beban penyusutan sebesar Rp&78.473.781 dan
Rp229.064_ 358 masing-masing pada tahun 2024 dan
2023 dicatat pada akun beban umum dan administrasi
(Catatan 186).

Berdasarkan kontrak dengan PT Bintang Rajawali
Perkasa pada tanggal 1 Mei 2021, Perkumpulan
meanyewa gedung kantor L'Avanua unit 260 dan lantai
lower ground dengan masa sewa 5 (lima) tahun
sampai dengan tanggal 30 Apnl 2026,

Pada tanggal 27 February 2024, Perkumpulan
melakukan amandemean untuk memperpanjang masa
sewa gedung kantor L'Avenue unit 26D dan lantai
lower ground menjadi 7 (tujuh) tahun sampai dengan
tanggal 30 April 2028.

Berdasarkan kontrak dengan Widjaya Dinata pada
tanggal 14 Februari 2023, Perkumpulan menyewa
gedung kantor L'Avenue unit 25C ruang B dengan
masa sewa 4 tahun 2 bulan sampai dengan tanggal
30 April 2026,

Pada tanggal 2  Aprl 2024, Perkumpulan
memperpanjang sewa gedung kantor L'avenue unit
26C ruang B menjadi § tahun 2 bulan sampai dengan
tanggal 30 April 2028.

Depreciation expenses amounted to Rpb7e.473.781 and
Rp229.064.398 in 2024 and 2023 are recorded in the
general and administrative expenses accounts (Note 76).

Under contract with PT Bintang Rajawali Perkasa
an May 1, 2021, the Association leased an L'Avenue
office building wnt 260 and floor lower ground for
5 (five) years until Apnil 30, 2026.

On 27 February 2024, the Associafion made amendment
to extend their lease on office space L'Avenue unit 260
and floor lower ground for 7 (seven) years
until Apnil 30, 2028,

Under contract with Widiaya Dinata on
February 14, 2023, the Association leased an L'Avenue
office building unit 26C room B for 4 years 2 months until
Aprl 30,2026,

On Apnl 2, 2024, the Association made amendment
fo extend their lease on office space L'Avenue unif 26C
roam B for 6 years 2 months unbil April 30, 2028,
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDOHESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
{Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

8, ASET HAK GUNA (lanjutan)

Atas sewa tersebut, mutasi labilitas sewa pada tahun
2024 dan 2023 adalah sebagai berikut:

8, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSET (confinued]

For the lease of the office building, the movements of
lease labiify in 2024 and 2023 are as follows:

2024 2023
Saldo awal 1.745.247 812 1.676.446.185 Beginning balance
Penambahan di tahun berjalan 1.515.888.764 632.051.976 Additions in the current year
Pembayaran di tahun berjalan (B55,254.522) (563.250.249) Payment in the current year
Saldo akhir 2.402.883.053 1.745.247 812 Ending balance
Liabilitas sewa-jangka pendek 670.606.874 804.749.967 Lease liability-short term
Liabilitas sewa-jangka panjang 1.732.276.179 940.497.845 Lease liability-long term
9. UTANG DISTRIBUSI 9. DISTRIBUTION PAYABLES
2024 2023
Utang Distrbusi 171.806.880.647 141.865.690.304 Distrbution Fayables
Ltang distribusi merupakan royalti yang akan Distribution payables represent royalties payable fo alf

dibayarkan kepada seluruh anggota yang terdaftar di

registered members of the Association's.

Perkumpulan.
10. AKRUAL 10. ACCRUALS
2024 2023
LMKMN 7430918244 16.817.819.314 LMKN
Lain-lain 4 871.632.320 1.083.735.947 Others
Jumlah 12.302.550.564 17.911.555.261 Toral

11. LIABILITAS IMBALAN KERJA

Liabilitas imbalan kera karyawan Perkumpulan pada
31 Desember 2024 dan 2023 dihitung oleh akiuaris
independen sesuai dengan Undang-Undang (*UU")
Mo.B/2023, Peraturan Pemenntah Mo, 35/2021
("PP 3572021") dan Peraturan Perkumpulan, vang
merupakan kewajiban imbalan kerja.

Liabilitas imbalan kerja Perkumpulan pada tanggal
31 Desember 2024 dan 2023 dihitung cleh akiuaris
independen KKA Setya Widedo, yang laporannya
tertanggal 19 Mei 2025,

Asumsi-asumsi dasar yang digunakan dalam
menghitung liabilitas imbalan kerja adalah sebagai

11. EMPLQYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES

Liabilities for employes benefits as of
December 31, 2024, and 2023 were calculated by an
independent actuary in accordance with the Indonesian
Law No.6/2023, Govemment Regulation No.3¥2021
(PP 35/20217) and Associalion’s Regulation, which
represants an underlying defined benafits obligation.

Employee benefit labiities of the Associafion as
of Decamber 31, 2024, and 2023 were calcwated by an
independent firm, KKA Setya Widods, whose report
dated May 19, 2025,

The basic assumplions used in calowlating the liabilities
for employee benefits are as follows:

barikut;
2024
Usia pensiun normal 59
Tingkal drskonlo per lahun 1.14%
Tingkat kenaikan gaji per tahun 3%
Tingkal cacat 50% dan 1abal Morntalita
Tingkat kematian TR I 2018

2023
o8 Normal retirement age
6, 53% Dhscount rale per year
3% Siary growth rate per year
50% Trom maortality table Disabivly rafe
TMI IV 2019 Movtaity rate
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, uniess otherwise stated)

11. LIABILITAS IMBALAN KERJA (lanjutan)
a. Beban imbalan kerja yang diakui di laporan
penghasilan kemprehensif adalah sebagai berikut:

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT LIABILITIES {continued)

a. Employee benefit expenses recognized in the
comprehensive income statement are as follows:

2023
183,350 437 Currént sarvice cosd
- Pasl senice cost
(12 670 868) Inferast cost
170.679.669 Talal

b. The movement in present value employee benefits

lability was as follows:
2023

1.568.019 846 Heginmng balance
- Posl sarvica cost
183 350 437 Currard service cosi
100,889 833 Interast cost
[174.956.418) Banehls already paid
Acfuanal loss on

1677303 698 Torg-torm banefits
Actuarial fgainlioss on
Changas ir scomoms

33610493 Assumpians
(167 J00 SED) Expariance aoinsimeants
1.643.613.622 Ending balance

¢. The lofal of other comprehensive income recognized
was as follows:

2023
33610493 Changes in financial assumplions
Expenance adivziment on
(167.300.569) obligations
A15 802 600 Actuarial (geinkioss on pan assels
(277 925.615) Assots coultng offoct
4.276.849 Total

2024
Biaya jasa kKini 307 799 903
Biaya masa lalu {174,155 641)
Biaya bunga {2 505 084)
Jumlah 221.139.177
k. Mutasi nilai kini dari liabilitas imbalan kerja adalah
sebagai berikut;
2024
Saldo awal 1.543.613.622
Bieya jasa masa kalu (174,155 641)
Bienya jasa kini 307,790 903
Biaya bunga 107091 483
Maniaat vang telah dibayar (3.000.000)
Ferugian akiuanal
alas imbalan jangka panjang 1.871.340.367
Kemngian/{keuntungan)
aktuarial atas:
Perubahan asurms akornom
Ekonami (22 589.613)
Parmasuaian panaalamean GG 663 741
Saldo akhir 2.466.4135.496
¢. Jumlah yang diakui pada pendapatan kemprehensif
lain adalah sebagai berikut:
2024
Parubahan asumsi kéuandgan {22 509 613)
Pampesuaian pengalaman
liabilitas G663 741
Koeuntungan [ kerugian akleana
terhadag akliva program 32028 232
Efek dan asot seling (485.640.160)
Jumlah 130.452.200
d.  Mutasi nilai kini dari liabilitas imbalan kerja adalah

sebagai berikut:

d. The movement in present value employee benefits
liability was as follows:

2024 2023
Milai sekarang kewajiban 2.455413.495 15843613622 Pragent value of abilifies
Milai wajar akliva program (2103 822 118) (1907 053, 150) Fair value of plan azsed
Surplus 351.591.3FF (453.445 528) Surplus
Dampak balas alas asel - A53.44%5.528 Tmpact of assal ceuling
Jumilah 351.581.377 - Tofal
% ©
L]
/
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

12. PERPAJAKAN

a. Utang Pajak

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

12. TAXATION

a. Taxes Payables

2024

Pajak Penghasilan:

Pasal 4(2) 22177.094

Pasal 21 272512375

Pasal 23 3.377.329.749

Pasal 26 1.601.594 286

Pasal 25 844 241

Fajak pertambahan nilai 5.151.334.966
Jumlah 10.425.592.721

2023
Income taxes:
2 BBA 845 Article 4(2)
156.576.376 Article 21
3.103.300.758 Article 23
T80.157.088 Article 26
6.537.385 Article 29
1.964.918.182 Value added fax
5.994.187.435 Total

b. Beban Pajak Penghasilan

Rekonsiliasi antara surplus sebelum pajak penghasilan,
sebagaimana tercantum pada laporan penghasilan
kemprehensif lain dengan taksiran laba kena pajak
adalah sebagai berikut:

b, Income Tax Expense

A reconcilialion between suplus before income tax, as
shown in the statement of other comprehensive income
with faxable income is as follows:

2024

Surplus sebelum pajak

penghasilan 316.897 482
Eeda tetap:
Beban yang tidak dapat

dikurangkan 7.393.673.902
Pendapatan yang dikenakan

pajak penghasilan yang

bersifat final (6.863.092 826)
Jumlah Beda Tetap 847 478.558
Estimasi Surplus Kena Fajak 847.478.558
Beban pajak penghasilan 185,445,282
Dikurangi:
Pajak dibayar dimuka:

PPh Pasal 23 (132.373.286)

PPh Pasal 25 {53.427.755)
Pajak Penghasilan Terutang 644,241

2023

Surplus befare

120.233.570 income fax
Farmanent differences:

6.704.515.191 Nendeductible expenses

Income subject to

(6.297.672.425) final income tax
406.842.766 Tofal permanent differences
527.076.336 Estimated taxable surplus
115.956.721 income fax expenses
Deducted
Frapaid income laxes

(60.246.983) Article 23

(49.172.352) Article 25
6.537.385 Income Tax Payable

13. ASET BERSIH TERIKAT PERMAMNEN

Menurut Akta Notaris No. 4 tanggal 2 Mei 2024 yang
dibuat oleh Dian Fitriana, SH, MKn, kekayaan pangkal
Perkumpulan berupa vang yang telah dipisahkan oleh
pendiri, yang pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024 dan
2023 berjumlah sebesar Rp250.000.000.

S

13. PERMANENTLY RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

According to Notarial Deed No. 4 dated May 2, 2024 by
Dian Fitriana, SH, MKn, the basic wealth of the
Association is in the form of fund that has been
segregated by the founder, which as of December 31,
2024, and 2023 amounted to Rp250.000.000

A
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
_t Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

14. PENDAPATAN ROYALTI

Digital

Luar negeri
Live event
Karaoke
LImum
Siaran

Jumilah

15. BEBAN DISTRIBUSI

Distribusi
LMEN
Lain-lain

Jumilah

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, uniless otherwise stated)

14. ROYALTY REVENUES

16. BEBAN UMUM DAN ADMINISTRASI

Gaji, lembur
dan tunjangan
Jasa IT
Jasa profesional
Jamuan
Operasional Kantor
Amortisasi aset
hak guna(Catatan 8)
Penyusutan aset tetap
(Catatan 7)
Perlengkapan kKantor
Peralanan dinas

Lain-lain

Jumlah

2024 2023
130.778.051.187 102.128.341.204 Digital
19.208.551.030 11.130.826.113 Overseas
16.516.821.937 2.015.560.510 Live event
4.590.770.380 6.324.865.304 Karaoke
3.997.977.868 7.186.784.840 General
1.134.055.510 3.461.245.708 Broadcast
176.236.227.911 132.247.723.679 Tortal
15. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
2024 2023
166.662.237.195 118.357 964 488 Distribution
4.715.364 666 4 677.499.150 LAMKEN
3.684.488.190 2.991.540.279 Others
165.066.090.031 126.027.003.957 Total
16. GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2024 2023

11.632.376.959

8.268.961.935

17. PENDAPATAN LAIN-LAIN = NETO

Pendapatan lain-lain

Pendapatan

bunga deposito
Operasional
Keuntungan selisih kurs
Pendapatan

bunga bank
Sponsor

Sub Jumlah

3.089.057.897 1.622.104.169
1.331.015.852 1.074.790.914
829.905.923 1.255.435.428
T02.977.626 1.184.854.354
679.473.791 229.064.358
434.369.258 424 263.853
377.593.20 332.731.690
357.684 816 279.486.252
282.098.098 216.747.717
19.616.553.322 14.888.440.750
17. OTHER INCOME - NET
2024 2023
6.512.597 480 2.855.614.383
2.020.207.372 1.843.544 570
573.050.755 510.130.886
350.495.346 442.058.042
- 271.662.989
9.456.350.953 9.023.010.880

Salanies, overtime
and allowance
IT expenses
Proffesional fee
Enterfainment
Operational expenses
Amortization of
right of use asset (Note 8)
Depreciation of fixed assels
{Note 7)
Office supplies
Business travel
Others

Total

Other income

Interest incorme from
time deposit

Operational

ain on foreign exchange

Interest incorme from
bank account

Sponsor

Sub Towal
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
(Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

17. PENDAPATAN LAIN-LAIN — NETO (lanjutan)

17.

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

2024

Beban lain-ain
Beban bunga

aset hak guna (205.227.707)
Perjalanan domestik (149.488.048)
Jasa Profesional (123.981.850)
Hibwran (98.105.783)
Kurir (76.278.580)
Biaya pajak (38.320.061)
Lain-lain (1.636.000)
Sub Jumlah (693.038.009)
Jumilah 8.763.312.044

18. FERJANJIAN PENTING

Berdasarkan perjanjian kerja sama penarikan dan
penghimpunan rovalti hak cipta lagu danfatau musik
dan/atau hak terkait dalam rutinitas program LMKN
untuk pericde 2024 antara Pelaksana Harian LMKMN
Mo. 005/PKS.Lisensi’PH-LMEMN/IV-2024  dengan
WaMI No. HEI-11.K1.01.04 pada tanggal 4 April 2024,
perjanjian ini mengatur mengenai pemberian
kewenangan penarikan dan penghimpunan royalti Hak
Cipta Lagu dan/atau Musik dan/atau Hak Terkait serta
mengatur target penghimpunan royalti dan besaran
biaya operasional yang timbul atas kegiatan penarikan
dan penghimpunan royalti untuk periode 1 Januari
2024 sampai dengan 31 Desember 2024. Sampai
dengan tanggal pelaporan keuangan, perjanjian ini
masih dalam proses perpanjangan.

19. INSTRUMEN KEUANGAN

Milai wajar didefinisikan sebagai jumlah dimana
instrumen tersebut dapat dipertukarkan di dalam
transaksi jangka pendek antara pihak yang
berkeinginan dan memiliki pengetahuan yang
memadai melalui suatu transaksi yang wajar, selain di
dalam penjualan terpaksa atau penjualan likuidasi.
Milai wajar didapatkan dari kuotasi harga pasar, modal
arus kas diskonto dan model penentuan harga opsi
yang sewajarnya.

Instrumen keuvangan yang disajikan di dalam laporan
keuangan dicatat sebesar nilai wajar atau pada biaya
perolehan diamortisasi, atau disajikan sebesar jumiah
tercatat baik karena jumlah tersebut adalah kurang
lebih sebasar nilai wajarnya atau karena nilai wajarmya
tidak dapat diukur secara handal.

18.

19,

OTHER INCOME — NET (continued)
2023
Other Expenses
Interest expense on
(68.499.537) night-of-use assefs
(87.509.120) Travel domestic
(10.000.000) Professional senvies
(31.130.097) Entertainment
{21.204.770) Courier
(15.992.759) Tax expense
(700.000) Others
(235.056.283) Sub Total
B.7BT7.954.597 Total
SIGNIFICANT AGREEMENTS

Based on the agreement for the withdrawal and
collection of sang and/or music copyright royalties and‘or
related rights in the LMKN program routine for the 2024
period between LMKN Daily Executors No, 003FPKS.
License/PH-LMKNAV-2024 with WAMI HKI-1.K1.01.04
on April 4, 2024, this agreemernt regulates the
authorization fo withdraw and colfect royalties for Song
andfor Music Copyrght andfor Related Rights and
regulates the larget of colleclting for the period
Januvary 1, 2024 to December 31, 2024. As of the
financial sfatement reporting date, this agreement is shill
in the extension process.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the
instrument can be exchanged in a short-term fransaction
between willing and knowledgeable parties through a fair
transaction, other than in a forced sale or a liguidation
zale. Fair value is obtained from quoted market prices,
discounted cash flow models and oplions pricing models
that are appropriate.

Financial instruments presented in the statement of
financial position are carmied at fair value or amortized
cost, otherwise, they are presented at camying amounts
as either these are reasonable approximation of fair
values or their fair values cannot be reliably measured.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAMN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tangaal tersebut
{Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

20. MANAJEMEN RISIKO KEUANGAN

Risike utama dari instrumen keuvangan Perkumpulan
adalah risike mata wang asing, risike kredit, risiko
likuiditas dan risike permodalan. Ketua menelaah dan
menyetujui kebijakan untuk mengelola risiko sebagai
beorikut:

Risiko Mata Uang Asing

Risike nilai tukar mata uang asing adalah risiko
perubahan nilai wajar arus kas di masa datang dari
suatu instrumen keuangan yang berfluktuasi sabagai
akibat dari perubahan nilai tukar mata vang asing
yang digunakan oleh Perkumpulan.

Mata uang pelaporan Perkumpulan adalah Rupiah.
Perkumpulan menghadapi risiko nilai tukar mata uang
asing karena sebagian pendapatan diterima dalam
mata vang USD. Apabila pembelian Perkumpulan di
dalam mata uang selain Rupiah, dan tidak seimbang
dalam hal jumlah danfatau waktu, Perkumpulan
menghadapi risiko mata uang asing.

Perkumpulan tidak mempunyai kebijakan lindung nilai
yang formal untuk mengurangi risiko nilai tukar mata
uang asing. Namun, terkait dengan hal - hal yang telah
didiskusikan pada paragraf di atas, fluktuasi dalam
nilai tukar Rupiah dan USD menghasilkan lindung nilai
natural untuk risiko nilai tukar Perkumpulan.

Risiko Kredit

Risike kredit adalah risiko di mana salah satu pihak
atas instrumen kewangan akan gagal memenuhi
kewajibannya dan menyebabkan pihak lain
mengalami kerugian keuangan. Risike kredit yang
dihadapi Perkumpulan berasal dan  kegatan
operasional.

o’

FERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The main risks ansing from the Associalion's financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk, liguidity
risk and capital risk. The Chairman review and approve
policies for managing these risks, which are described in
more detail as follows:

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk is a risk in the fair value of future
cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuates az a
result of changes in foreign currency exchange rates
used by the Association’s.

The reporting currency of the Association is Rupiah. The
Association is exposed fo foreign exchange risk as a
portion of revenue is received in USD. Where the
Association’s purchases are in currencies other than
Rupiah, and are not balanced in terms of amount and/or
timing, the Association is exposed to foreign cumency
risk.

Association does not have a formal hedging policy to
mitigate foreign exchange nsk. However, in light of the
matters discussed in the paragraph above, fluctuations
in Rupiah and USD exchange rales result in a nafural
hedge against the Associalion’s exchange rale risk.

Credit Risk

Cradit risk is the nsk that one parly fto a financial
instrurment would default on itz obligations and cause the
other parfy to suffer a financial loss. The credit nsk faced
by the Associafion comes from cperational aclivities.
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PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
CATATAN ATAS LAPORAN KEUANGAN

Pada tanggal 31 Desember 2024

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
{Disajikan dalam Rupiah, kecuali dinyatakan lain)

PERKUMPULAN WAHANA MUSIK INDONESIA
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As of December 31, 2024

and for the year then ended

(Expressed in Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

20. MANAJEMEN RISIKO KEUANGAN (lanjutan) 20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Risiko Likuiditas Liguidity Risk

The Association currently expected fo pay all labilities as
they are due. In order fo meet cash commiiments, the
Association expects ils operalions lo generale sufficient
cash inflows. In addition, the Association holds financial
assels in markels fthat are liguid and available to meef
liquidity needs.

Fada saat ini Perkumpulan berharap dapat membayar
semua liabilitas pada saat jatuh tempo. Untuk
memenuhi komitmen kas, Perkumpulan berharap
kegiatan cperasinya dapat menghasilkan arus kas
masuk yang cukup. Selain itu, Perkumpulan memiliki
aset keuangan pada pasar yang likuid dan tersedia
unfuk memeanuhi kebutuhan likuiditas.

31 Desember 2024 [ December 31, 2024

< 1 tahun/ 1-6 tahun/ > b tahun/
< 1 ymar 1-5 yoar = § yoar Taotal
Rp Rp Rp Rp
Litang Dhiglritwation
distribusi 171,806 880 64T 171 806 BR0 64T payablos
Akrual 12.3002_550_ 564 12302 550,564 Accruals
Utang lain-lain 163843408 - 163,843,400 Qther payatWes
Luatalilas sewa 60606854 1732206174 2A02 883,053 Lease abifes
Jumlah 184.943.881. 494 1.732.276.179 1B6.6T6.1567.673 Total
31 Desember 2023 /| December 31, 2023
< 1 tahun/ 1-5 tahun/ > 5 tahun/
= 1 ymar 1-5 ymar = 5 ymar Total
Rp Rp Rp Rp
Litang Dizdribertion
distribusi 141 865 600 304 144 865 GO0 304 payahlos
Akrual 179711 555261 17.911.555.261 Accruals
Uang lain-lain 197.757.661 - 187, 757 661 Qther payatWes
Liabilitas sewa BOd 749 957 QA0 407 B45 1.745 247 812 Lease liabilifias
Jumlah 160.779.753.193 940.497 845 161.720.251.038 Total
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